# 

第二套 Part2 (简单版串联) 适合学生党使用

# 关于答疑和其他讯息

店主开通的福利微信公众号: 安小雅

公众号会在每场考试后发布考试答案回忆,还有最新考试资讯,雅思技巧等等福利哦!

店主个人微信提供素材售后服务,有疑问都可以在微信上询问哦!

# 如果我觉得素材有错怎么办?

我们的素材都是经过店主和外教一起编写和检查过的哦! 您可以放心!

其实外国人在生活中有一些常用的口头上的表达,看起来很奇怪但实际并没有错的,国内老师也不会懂这些。所以呀!如果你觉得素材有错,我们是非常欢迎您来询问我们滴!千万不要觉得不好意思哦!下面举两个例子:

"Anna is two years my elder." 安娜比我大两岁。"She is four months my younger" 她比我小四个月。

这是一种比较现代的说法,当然我们平时都会讲"Anna is two years older than me"和"She is four months younger than me."但其实外国人都会用前者多一些的。

"the majority of the girls were content discussing about how handsome or how affluent their boyfriends were." 女孩子们都在热烈地讨论他们的男朋友有多帅。

这是现代英语的另一个特征,就是外国人在口头上都常常会省略掉介词。这里就把 were content with discussing 的 with 去掉了。这在口语上是完全没问题的,但大家在写作中就尽量要避免哦。

# 目录

(一)哈利波特	5
1-2: 想再看一次的电影(新题)& 读过的有趣书籍或故事(新题)	5
(二) 英语外教	
3-4: 与其他文化的人共度时光(新题)& 享受的一节英语课(新题)	7
(三)野营	
(四)海淘	
8-9: 需要寻找信息的时刻(新题)& 购物时发生的问题(新题)	
(五)种花	12
10-11: 喜欢种植的人(新题) & 鼓励你做有趣事情的人(新题)	12
(六)穿搭打扮	
12-14: 校外学习的重要东西(新题)& 喜欢打扮的人(新题)& 国内名人	
(七)认真的人 <b>15-16:</b> 印象深刻的童年朋友(新题) <b>&amp;</b> 未来想一起工作的家人	
(八)成都 <b>17-18:</b> 会推荐给游客的我国某处地方(新题)& 宜居之地	
(九)意见不合	21
19-20: 与某人意见不合的时候(新题)& 别人询问你意见	21
(十) 男生女生向前冲	
21-22: 喜欢的节目(新题) & 想参加的比赛	23
(十一) 堵车	
(十二) 邻居	
(十三)帮助小孩	28
27-28:被赞扬的时刻 & 帮助小孩	
(十四)跳刘畊宏	
29-30: 令你惊喜而又开心的事物 & 近期改善生活的变动	29
31: 保持健康的方法	30
32-33: 困难的决定 & 完成的难事(新题)	31
(十五)图书馆自习	
34-35, 安静的地方 & 帮助你集中注意力的事物	22

(十六) 过春节包饺子	34
36-37: 忙碌的时刻 & 庆祝重要事件	
38: 喜欢的传统物品	36
39: 收到钱作为礼物(新题)	37
(十七) 丢包	
(十八) 共享单车	
(单独话题)	41
<ul><li>44: 国内重要水域</li><li>45: 拍过的一张满意的照片(新题)</li></ul>	
46: 忘记约定的时刻(新题)	
47: 分享某物的时刻(新题)	44
48:美丽的物品(新题)	45
49: 受欢迎的运动场(新题)	
50: 朋友的家(新题)	47

# (一) 哈利波特

#### 想再看一次的电影(新题)& 读过的有趣书籍或故事(新题) 1-2:

Describe a film/movie you enjoyed and would like to see again.

Some instructions you can follow:

What the film/movie was

When and where you saw the film/movie

What the film/movie was about

And explain why you would like to see this

film/movie again.

Describe a novel or a story you have read that you thought was particularly interesting.

Some instructions you can follow:

Why you read the novel story

What the novel/story was about

How long it took you to read it

And explain why you thought this novel/story was

so interesting.

#### 《想再看一次的电影》

Harry Potter is my favorite movie that I want to watch again! To be honest, I have watched it many times. It was extremely popular and the whole world already loved the story. When I was in primary school, I first read the series of this movie in cinema. I still remember that I was so excited that I could hardly sleep the day before. I couldn't wait to see what happens next!

Harry Potter is a about a young orphan boy named Harry who finds out he is a wizard and has to go to a magical wizard school called Hogwarts. The film is full of crazy magic, beautiful friendships, and exciting events.

I am eager to watch it again because this movie is full of all kinds of wild imaginings and ups and downs of the plot. It also talks about friendship and trust. In this film, Harry tries to be kind and honorable to everybody he meets, but sadly, not everybody is so kind in return. The movie taught me that it is important to know who you can trust and who you can rely upon. Furthermore, it taught me how important it is to have good friends that support and protect you.

#### 中文思路:

『哈利波特』<mark>是我最喜欢的电影,</mark>我想再看一次!事实上我已经看过很多次了。哈利波特的电影非常受 欢迎,全世界都喜欢这个故事。在我小学的时候,我第一次在电影院看到哈利波特系列的电影。我记得 我看得时候非常兴奋, 事实上, 那一晚我几乎都兴奋地失眠了, 我迫不及待的想知道后面发生了什么!

这部电影是一部关于一个名叫哈利的孤儿的故事,他发现自己是一名巫师,于是去了一所叫做霍格沃兹 的魔法学校。整部电影充满了各种神奇的魔法,动人的友谊,和令人兴奋的事件。

我很想抽空重新看一次哈利波特,因为这部电影充满了各种天马行空的想象和跌宕起伏的情节。故事中, 哈里试图对他遇到的每一个人都友好而尊敬,但遗憾的是,并不是每个人都回报他。这部电影告诉我, 知道你可以信任谁,可以依靠谁是很重要的。此外,它让我懂得了拥有支持和保护你的好朋友是多么重 要。淘宝店铺:安小雅。

### 《读过的有趣书籍或故事》

I'm a crazy fan of Harry Potter. The Harry Potter Series was extremely popular and the whole world already loved the story. When I was in primary school, my dad bought me a copy of them and it was the first time I read this book. I still remember that I was so excited that I could hardly sleep the day before. I couldn't wait to see what happens next! Well, I guess it took me only two days to read this book.

Harry Potter is a series of seven fantasy novels written by the British author JK Rowling. This series is a about a young orphan boy named Harry who finds out he is a wizard and has to go to a magical wizard school called Hogwarts. The film is full of crazy magic, beautiful friendships, and exciting events.

This book is very exciting to me because this book is full of all kinds of wild imaginings and ups and downs of the plot. It also talks about friendship and trust. In this book, Harry tries to be kind and honorable to everybody he meets, but sadly, not everybody is so kind in return. The book taught me that it is important to know who you can trust and who you can rely upon. Furthermore, the book taught me how important it is to have good friends that support and protect you.

### 中文思路:

我可是一个标准的哈迷。<u>哈利波特的书非常受欢迎,全世界都喜欢这个故事。</u>在我小学的时候,我爸爸买了其中一本给我,这是我我第一次读到这本书。我记得我看得时候非常兴奋,<u>事实上,那一晚我几乎都兴奋地失眠了,我迫不及待的想知道后面发生了什么!</u>我记得我大概两天就看完了这本书

哈利波特是由英国的 JK 罗琳创作的魔幻系列小说,一共有 7 部。这部小说是一部关于一个名叫哈利的 孤儿的故事,他发现自己是一名巫师,于是去了一所叫做霍格沃兹的魔法学校。这部电影充满了各种神 奇的魔法,动人的友谊,和令人兴奋的事件。

我觉得这本书非常让我兴奋,因为这本书充满了各种天马行空的想象和跌宕起伏的情节。在这本书中,哈里试图对他遇到的每一个人都友好而尊敬,但遗憾的是,并不是每个人都回报他。这本书告诉我,知道你可以信任谁,可以依靠谁是很重要的。此外,这本书让我懂得了拥有支持和保护你的好朋友是多么重要。

# (二) 英语外教

# 3-4: 与其他文化的人共度时光(新题) & 享受的一节英语课(新题)

Describe someone from another culture (e.g. a friend, a teacher) who you enjoy spending time with.

Who this person is

What his/her cultural background is

When and where you met this person

And explain why you enjoy spending time with this person from another culture.

Describe an English lesson that you really enjoyed. Some instructions you can follow:

Where the lesson took place

What the lesson was about

What the teacher did

And explain why you enjoyed this lesson so much.

Frankly speaking, it's quite difficult for me to find the opportunity to communicate with foreigners in my daily life. But it happened to me recently that I met Cathy, a one-on-one English teacher that I found online.

In preparation for the IELTS test, I've been looking for a foreign teacher who can help me with my speaking. My roommate Anna introduced her teacher, Cathy, to me once she knew about my trouble. So, I immediately scheduled sessions with Cathy and started our seminars on Zoom soon after. The way Cathy speaks is so genuinely British, even the way she teaches is different from what I had in China.

I still remember the first class we had clearly. Cathy was so enthusiastic when seeing me and made me feel quite comfortable. At that seminar, she was just like a friend to me and encouraged me to try my best to speak more in English. As for my speaking, many problems that she pointed out were not even noticed by me, such as repeating words and incorrect pronunciations. It made me feel so lucky that I could find her, as there's no doubt as to her professionalism.

It's truly enjoyable practicing speaking with her. On the one hand, her professionalism indeed helps me a lot. On the other hand, I don't know if I can expect all British people to share her enthusiasm and consistently encourage me in class. Even though I am hardly fluent, she would recognize my efforts and give praise, which significantly helped me on building my confidence.

### 中文思路:

说实话,我在日常生活中很少接触到来自其他文化的人。最近我碰巧接触到一个英国人,她就是我在网上找的一对一英语外教 Cathy。(在回答《享受的一节英语课》时,把第一段删掉即可)

最近我在<mark>备</mark>考雅思考试,一直想找个外教练习口语。我的舍友 Anna 知道了之后,介绍了她的英语老师 Cathy 给我。我和 Cathy 约好了时间,之后就在网络平台 Zoom 里上课了。Cathy 是个地道的英国人,说着一口流利的英式英语。她的上课方式和中国的英语老师完全不一样。

我还清楚地记得我们之间的第一堂英语课。Cathy 一见到我就非常热情地跟我打招呼,让我这个内敛的人感到很友好。在这节英语课上,她像朋友一样和我聊天,我也尽我所能地用英语回答她的问题。针对我的表现,她指出了我非常多的我没注意到的问题,比如重复用词,发音不标准。我觉得 Cathy 非常地专业,我很庆幸我能找到她。

我很享受跟她练习英语口语的时间。一方面是她很专业,对我的帮助非常大。另一方面不知道是否所有的英国人都如此热情,每次上课她都会不断的鼓励我。哪怕我说的很不流畅,她也一直夸我讲的很好。 这给了我很大的信心。

# (三)野营

# 5-7: 户外看到塑料污染的时刻(新题)& 去过的一个户外活动场所(新题)

# & 经济实惠的外出

Describe a time when you saw a lot of plastic waste in a natural environment

When and where you saw this plastic waste

How you think this plastic waste got there

Why you noticed it

And explain how you felt about seeing plastic waste in this natural environment.

Describe a place you went to do an outdoor activity.

Some instructions you can follow: Where you went and when

What outdoor activity you did at this place

Why you did this outdoor activity And explain how you felt about doing the outdoor activity at this place. Describe a special day out which didn't cost very much.

Some instructions that you can follow:

Where and when you went
What you did

What the you spent money on And explain why you enjoyed this special day out.

### 《户外看见塑料污染的时刻》

Recently, camping has become one of the most popular outdoor activities among young people. On my last holiday, a few friends and I went to a park to camp, but unfortunately we saw that there was a lot of plastic garbage in the park.

It was the weekend. My friends and I took a tent, some beverages and lots of snacks to the park. After we selected an appropriate spot, the boys started to put up the tent in the meadow while we girls were preparing food. Copyright by AnXiaoYa.

I found a lot of plastic litter scattered on the lawn, such as bottles, lunchboxes and food wrappers. It was obvious that the campers had left it behind on purpose or unconsciously. I witnessed some cleaners picking up rubbish in the park under the hot sun, but with little success, because there was just so much trash.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, it's been a long time since last I traveled. On occasions where residential buildings were quarantined, most of the citizens even couldn't get out of their home. Enjoying the sunshine, blue sky and getting close to nature is a rare luxury for us now. Even under such circumstances, there are still some people who are destroying our beautiful environment. I feel very helpless and ashamed. I can't control what other people do. All I can do is to dispose of all of my own garbage. At the same time, I would suggest that the government provide more supervision and expose and punish those who do not obey public morality.

#### 中文思路:

最近一段时间,露营成为了年轻人最喜欢的户外活动之一。淘宝店铺:安小雅。上个假期,我和几个朋友一起去公园露营,令我遗憾的的是我在公园里看到了很多塑料垃圾。

那是一个周末,我和几个朋友一起带着帐篷,饮料还有很多零食来到了公园。找好地方后,男生在草地上开始搭帐篷,我们几个女生负责准备食物。但这时候,我发现草坪上散落着不少塑料垃圾,饮料瓶,塑料饭盒和食品包装袋。很显然这些垃圾是露营者离开的时候忘了带走或者是故意的。清洁工项着烈日在公园里不停的捡垃圾,然而收效其微。因为垃圾实在太多了。

因为疫情的关系,我已经很长时间没有旅游了。有时候小区封闭,我们市民甚至连家门都出不了。能够 在周末享受阳光和蓝天,亲近大自然,对我们来说是一件非常难得的事。就是在这样的情况下,仍然有 一些人在破坏公园优美的环境。我感到非常无奈和遗憾。我没办法控制他人的行,我能做的只是把自己 产生的垃圾全部带走。同时我会建议政府加强监管,对不守公德的人给予曝光和处罚。

### 《去过的一个户外活动场所》&《经济实惠的外出》

Recently, camping has become one of the most popular outdoor activities among young people. On my last holiday, a few friends and I went to a park to camp, which turned out to be an unforgettably wonderful experience.

It was the weekend. My friends and I took a tent, some beverages and lots of snacks to the park. After we selected an appropriate spot, the boys started to put up the tent in the meadow while we girls were responsible for preparing food. I took with me a variety of fresh fruits, milk tea and crisps. In no time, the table was piled high with different foods. It was hot, but we immediately had access to some refreshing coolness after the tent was set up. We had a picnic, played board games and took photos in the meadow. It was a fun day.

Camping is really suitable for young people as it is both fun and affordable. The venues are freely available and all you need to do is to find friends with a tent and buy some food. The total cost for a whole day's fun is just several hundred yuan, or mere dozens of yuan per person. Compared with eating out, going shopping or playing escape rooms, camping is truly inexpensive.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, it's been a long time since last I traveled. On occasions where residential buildings were quarantined, I even couldn't get out of my home. Enjoying the sunshine, blue sky and getting close to nature is a rare luxury for me now. It was a beautiful sunny day with green meadows and a blue sky, and I took many amazing photos. I still cherish the good memories of that special day.

# 中文思路:

最近一段时间,露营成为了年轻人最喜欢的户外活动之一。上个假期,我和几个朋友一起去公园露营, 那真是奇妙又美好的一天。

那是一个周末,我和几个朋友一起带着帐篷,饮料还有很多零食来到了公园。找好地方后,男生在草地上开始搭帐篷,我们几个女生负责准备食物。我带了各种新鲜的水果,奶茶,薯片,不一会桌子上就堆满了食物。虽然天气很热,帐篷搭好之后立刻凉爽了不少。我们一群人在草地上野餐,玩桌游,拍照。度过了非常开心的一天。

露营真的非常适合年轻人,好玩并且花费不高。场地是免费的,我只需要找一个有帐篷的朋友,然后买一些食物。几百元就可以玩上一整天。平均下来一个人才几十元。比起吃饭,逛街或者是玩密室,露营实在是太便宜了。

因为疫情的关系,我已经很长时间没有旅游了。有时候小区封闭,我甚至连家门都出不了。能够在周末享受阳光和蓝天,亲近大自然,对我来说是一件非常难得的事。那天阳光超好,绿色的草地加上蓝色的天空,我拍了超多好看的照片。我非常怀念这特别的一天。

# (四)海淘

# 8-9: 需要寻找信息的时刻(新题)& 购物时发生的问题(新题)

Describe a time when you had to find some information.

Some instructions you can follow:

What information you had to find

Where you looked for the information

How much you enjoyed looking for the

information

And explain why you needed the information.

Describe a problem you had when you bought something in a shop/store or online.

Some instructions you can follow:

What you bought

Where and when you bought it

What problem you had with it

And explain how you felt about having this problem.

# 《需要寻找信息的时刻》

I've always liked Rimowa suitcases, but they are too expensive to buy in China. A few months ago, I discovered that the price in foreign countries was only half of that in Chinese shopping malls. So, I decided to buy one online from overseas. The purchase process did not go smoothly but finally I bought it successfully by searching for tons of information.

It is a German brand, so its official website is in German rather than English. I knew nothing of German, and had no idea where to even find the product I needed. Then I began to seek information on the Internet and found some shopping strategies through Google. I spent a whole afternoon to figure out how to pay the bill. Then I encountered a more severe problem: the product could not reach China by direct delivery. I began to look for solutions on the Internet again. Several hours later, I finally found a suitable transit company.

I spent nearly a day searching the Internet. I have to say, I don't like searching for information at all. In the face of the German that I could not understand, and the complicated shopping process, I was exhausted. Although I bought my favorite suitcase at a relatively low price, it was really energy-consuming. With the information on the Internet, I bought my favorite product at an affordable price. Everything was worthwhile in the end. This useful information has saved me a lot of money.

一直以来,我<mark>都很喜欢日默瓦的行</mark>李箱。但是这个品牌在国内的售价实在是太昂贵了。几个月前,我发现国外的价格只要商场的一半。于是我决定网上海淘,购买过程并不顺利,我寻找了很多信息才解决了这个难题。

这个行李箱是一个德国品牌,因此它的官网是德文的而不是英文。打开网站之后我什么也看不懂,我甚至不知道从哪里才能找到我需要的商品。我开始在网上搜索信息,我通过搜索引擎找到一些购物攻略,按照网上的攻略,我折腾了一下午,才成功到达了付款页面。这时候我又发现了一个更严重的问题,商品并不支持直邮中国。我又开始在网上寻找解决办法,好几个小时后,我最终找到了一家合适的转运公司。

<u>几乎一天的时间,我都在网上搜索各种信息。</u>事实上,我并不喜欢搜索信息。<u>面对我看不懂的德文和复杂的购物流程,我累的精疲力竭</u>。但通过网上的信息,我以非常实惠的价格买到了我喜欢的商品。这一切还是非常值得的,这些有用的信息让我节省了一大笔钱。

#### 《购物时发生的问题》

I've always liked Rimowa suitcases, but they are too expensive to buy in China. A few months ago, I discovered that the price in foreign countries was only half of that in Chinese shopping malls. So, I decided to buy one online from overseas. But the purchase process didn't go smoothly because I came up against some hot potatoes.

It is a German brand, so its official website is in German rather than English. I knew nothing of German, and had no idea where to even find the product I needed. Then I began to seek information on the Internet and found some shopping strategies through Google. I spent a whole afternoon to figure out how to pay the bill. Then I encountered a more severe problem: the product could not reach China by direct delivery. I began to look for solutions on the Internet again. Several hours later, I finally found a suitable transit company.

I spent nearly a day searching the Internet. I have to say, I don't like searching for information at all. In the face of the German that I could not understand, and the complicated shopping process, I was exhausted. Although I bought my favorite suitcase at a relatively low price, it was really energy-consuming. It is gratifying that I have fully understood the process of buying products from overseas. If I need to purchase other items in the future, I believe everything will be much easier.

### 中文思路:

一直以来,我都很喜欢日默瓦的行李箱。但是这个品牌在国内的售价实在是太昂贵了。几个月前,我发现国外的价格只要商场的一半。于是我决定网上海淘,购买过程并不顺利,我遇到了一些棘手的问题。这个行李箱是一个德国品牌,因此它的官网是德文的而不是英文。打开网站之后我什么也看不懂,我甚至不知道从哪里才能找到我需要的商品。我开始在网上搜索信息,我通过搜索引擎找到一些购物攻略,按照网上的攻略,我折腾了一下午,才成功到达了付款页面。这时候我又发现了一个更严重的问题,商品并不支持直邮中国。我又开始在网上寻找解决办法,好几个小时后,我最终找到了一家合适的转运公司。

几乎一天的时间,我都在网上搜索各种信息。面对我看不懂的德文和复杂的购物流程,我累的精疲力竭。 虽然我以相对便宜的价格买到了我喜欢的行李箱,但是这真的很耗费精力。令人欣慰的是,我已经完全 清楚了海淘的流程,如果以后我还需要购买其他物品,相信一切会轻松的多。

# (五)种花

# 10-11: 喜欢种植的人(新题)& 鼓励你做有趣事情的人(新题)

Describe a person you know who enjoys growing plants (e.g. flowers, vegetables, fruit trees).

Some instructions you can follow:

How you know this person

What plants this person enjoys growing

Where this person grows plants

And explain why you think this person enjoys growing these plants.

Describe a person who inspired you to do something interesting.

Some instructions you can follow:

Who the person is

What interesting thing you did

How this person inspired you to do this thing

And explain how you felt after this person inspired you to do something interesting.

#### 《喜欢种植的人》

My mom is crazy about gardening. She has filled our balcony with all kinds of flowers. I often see her pruning her flowers for the entire afternoon. Copyright by AnXiaoYa. Obviously, planting flowers makes her very happy. Of course, I know that since we have always lived together.

My mom grows all kinds of potted plants, such as roses, jasmines, and some green plants I can't name. Since our house has no yard, she can only plant flowers in pots on the balcony. She has even hung iron frames on the windows for holding flower pots. Thus, plants can be seen on the windows and in the corners of the living room. Most of the plants though are on the balcony. One reason is that the balcony is spacious enough; another reason is that most plants need sunshine to survive. Anyway, the balcony is a suitable place for potting flowers.

My mom loves growing flowers. She spends most of her free time with her beloved flowers. Every time she buys a new variety of flowers, she looks like a happy child. She often enthusiastically introuduces to my dad and me what is this and what is that. Whenever a plant dies, she seems very depressed. My mom cherishes those plants as she does her own child.

### 中文思路:

我的妈妈是个很喜欢种植的人,她在我们家的阳台上种满了各种各样的花。我经常看到她自己一个人在阳台上摆弄她的花,一弄就是一下午。很显然种花让她感到很快乐。因为我们一直生活在一起,我自然是认识她的。

我的妈妈喜欢种各种各样的盆栽植物,比如玫瑰花,茉莉花,还有一些我叫不出名字的绿叶植物。因为我们家没有花园,所以她只能在阳台上用花盆种花。她甚至在我家的窗户上悬挂了铁架,用来放花盆。因此,我家的窗户,客厅的角落都能看到各种各样的植物,当然大部分的植物还是放在阳台上。一方面是因为阳台地方宽敞,有充足的位置,另一方面,大部分的植物是需要阳光照射的。因此阳台是个很适合种花的地方。

我妈妈喜欢种花是非常显而易见的,她把自己大部分的空闲时间都留给了她心爱的花草。每次她买了新品种的花,都会开心的像个孩子似的。他会热情的给我和爸爸介绍这是什么花。偶尔有植物死亡,我妈妈就会非常失落。我们家的花草就像是我妈妈的另外一个孩子一样珍贵。

#### 《鼓励你做有趣事情的人》

My mom is crazy about gardening. She has filled our balcony with all kinds of flowers. I told my mom that I like succulents very much, and their chubby appearance was very attractive. My mom immediately encouraged me to try growing them. But whatever I grew, almost all of them died, so I had no confidence in myself.

One afternoon, when I got home, I found a very beautiful succulent on my desk. My mom not only bought me my favorite gift, but also patiently shared with me how to take care of it. She encouraged me a lot and told me that succulents were very tenacious and would not die easily.

For the next few weeks, I took care of the succulents like caring for a child. According to the method my mom taught me, I watered it and put it under the sun regularly. I also took photos and uploaded them to the "Moments" on my WeChat, which received many compliments. After more than a month, the succulents were not only still alive, but also sprouted. It was really interesting.

I am very grateful to my mom, who gave me a lot of encouragement when I was not confident. Sometimes, I am interested in something, but I dare not try for fear of failure. In times like these, the encouragement of relatives and friends helps me to try bravely. With this successful experience, I am beginning to love growing flowers. This is very interesting.

#### 中文思路:

我的妈妈是个很喜欢种植的人,她在我们家的阳台上种满了各种各样的花。当我告诉妈妈我很喜欢多肉植物,它们胖胖的样子非常惹人喜爱。妈妈立刻鼓励我养多肉试试。但是从小到大,我几乎养什么死什么。我对自己非常没有信心。

某天下午当我回到家,我发现我的书桌上多了一盆非常漂亮的多肉植物。妈妈不但给我买了我喜欢的礼物,还耐心的和我分享如何照顾它们。她说了很多鼓励我的话,并告诉我多肉植物生命力是非常顽强的,并不会轻易死亡。

接下来的一段时间,我像照顾孩子一样照顾那盆多肉。我按照妈妈教我的方法,定期给多肉浇水和晒太阳。我还拍照发了朋友圈,收到了很多夸赞。一个多月以后,多肉不仅没有死,甚至长出了新芽。这实在是太有趣了。

我很感谢我的<mark>妈妈,她在我没有信心</mark>的时候给我了很多鼓励。有时候,我对一些事物是有兴趣的,但因为害怕失败不敢尝试。这时候亲人和朋友的鼓励会让我勇敢的去尝试。有了这次成功的经历,我好像开始爱上养花了。这是一个很有趣的过程。

# (六) 穿搭打扮

# 12-14: 校外学习的重要东西(新题) & 喜欢打扮的人(新题) & 国内名人

Describe a person you know who enjoys dressing well.

Some instructions you can follow:

Who the person is

What job/studies the person does

What sort of clothes the person

wears

And explain why you think this person enjoys dressing well.

Describe a well-known person in your country who is very popular.

Some instructions that you can

follow:

Who this person is

What you know about this person

Why he/she is so popular

And explain how you feel about this person being so popular.

Describe something important that you learned, not in school or college.

Some instructions you can follow:

What you learned

How you learned it

How easy/difficult it was to learn And explain why learning this was

important to you.

### 《喜欢打扮的人》

I'd like to talk about an influencer I like very much, whose account name is Midnight Ms. Xu. As a fashion blogger popular online, she has her accounts on various influential platforms, such as Tik Tok, Weibo, and Xiaohongshu.

As famous an influencer as she is, she's just ordinary-looking. When she wears no makeup, she looks just like an ordinary person. She often shares with fans useful tips for putting on makeup and looking beautiful, which are interesting as well as very practical for ordinary girls like us.

Her style of fashion is quite variable. Sometimes she would wear a sexy dress and high-heeled shoes, and other times sportswear, looking like the girl next door. Whatever she wears, she can always combine colors and styles harmoniously.

As a fashion blogger, Ms. Xu regards dressing up as part of her work. Although she is an ordinary girl, she becomes an enviable beauty on video through her efforts. I have learned a lot of fashion tips from her videos; she leads me to understand that I should choose appropriate clothes to make up for the disadvantages in my figure. Not only has she taught me how to dress better, but she has also boosted my confidence.

### 中文思路:

我想谈谈一个我很<mark>喜欢</mark>的网红,她的账号叫做深夜徐老师,是风靡全网的时尚博主。她在各大平台都有自己的账号,比如抖音,微博,小红书等等。

她虽然是一个非常有名的网红,但事实上她的长相很普通。素颜的她甚至看起来和普通人没有区别。她的视频经常会给粉丝分享一些化妆和变美的小技巧,不仅有趣而且对我们普通女孩来说非常实用。

她的穿衣风格十分多变,有时候是性感的连衣裙配上高跟鞋,有时候是邻家女孩的运动装。不管她穿什么,从颜色的选择,到款式的搭配,都非常和谐。

徐老师作为一个时尚博主,打扮是她工作的一部分。她本来是个普通的女孩,经过自己的努力变成了视频中的令人羡慕的美女。我从她的视频中学到了很多穿衣服的技巧。选择合适的衣服,可以遮盖自己的身材的缺点,她不仅教会我如何穿着更加得体,同时也让我更加自信。

#### 《校外学习的重要东西》

After entering the university, the most important thing I learned was how to dress myself. This includes learning how to apply makeup and dress stylishly. I think it's an important skill for a girl to have.

I was taught all this by a fashion blogger I follow, whose name is Midnight Ms. Xu. As a fashion blogger popular online, she has her accounts on various influential platforms, such as Tik Tok, Weibo, and Xiaohongshu. She often shares with fans useful tips for putting on makeup and looking beautiful, which are interesting as well as very practical for ordinary girls like us.

Although she is an ordinary girl, she becomes an enviable beauty on video through her efforts. I have learned a lot of fashion tips from her videos; she leads me to understand that I should choose appropriate clothes to make up for the disadvantages in my figure. Not only has she taught me how to dress better, but she has also boosted my confidence.

I don't think it's difficult to learn how to dress well because I'm very interested in it and it's always fun. To some extent, dressing well is not only to please yourself, but also to show respect to others. Anyone would happily oblige a fetching young girl. I believe this skill will become more and more useful as I start to work in the future.

#### 中文思路:

进入大学之后,我最大的收获就是学会了如何打扮自己。包括学习化妆和穿搭。我认为对于一个女孩子来说,这是很重要的一项技能。

教会我这一切的是一位我很喜欢的时尚博主,<u>她的账号叫做深夜徐老师,是风靡全网的时尚博主。她在各大平台都有自己的账号,比如抖音,微博,小红书等等。她的视频经常会给粉丝分享一些化妆和变美</u>的小技巧,不仅有趣而且对我们普通女孩来说非常实用。

<u>她本来是个普通的女孩,经过自己的努力变成了视频中的令人羡慕的美女。我从她的视频中学到了很多</u> <u>穿衣服的技巧。选择合适的衣服,可以遮盖自己的身材的缺点,她不仅教会我如何穿着更加得体,同时</u> 也让我更加自信。

我认为学习穿搭并不难,我对这件事情很有兴趣。所以总是乐在其中。一定程度上,穿着得体不光是为了取悦自己,更是对他人的尊重。没有人会拒绝和一个漂亮的女孩子打交道,我相信日后随着我步入社会,这项技能将会变得越来越有用。

### 《国内名人》

I'd like to talk about an influencer I like very much, whose account name is Midnight Ms. Xu. As a fashion blogger popular online, she has her accounts on various influential platforms, such as Tik Tok, Weibo, and Xiaohongshu.

I have followed her for several years and have read every video she uploaded. As famous an influencer as she is, she's just ordinary-looking. When she wears no makeup, she looks just like an ordinary person. She often shares with fans useful tips for putting on makeup and looking beautiful, which are interesting as well as very practical for ordinary girls like us.

Although she is an ordinary girl, she becomes an enviable beauty on video through her efforts. I have learned a lot of fashion tips from her videos; she leads me to understand that I should choose appropriate clothes to make up for the disadvantages in my figure. Not only has she taught me how to dress better, but she has also boosted my confidence. It is the reason why she can have so many followers on the internet.

It makes me very happy to witness how she became a top-famous influencer from a nobody because every video she makes is so interesting. She deserves her fame.

<u>我想谈谈一个我很喜欢的网红,她的账号叫做深夜徐老师,是风靡全网的时尚博主。她在各大平台都有</u>自己的账号,比如抖音,微博,小红书等等。

我已经关注她好几年了,近几年我几乎看过她发的每一条视频。她虽然是一个非常有名的网红,但事实上她的长相很普通。素颜的她甚至看起来和普通人没有区别。她的视频经常会给粉丝分享一些化妆和变 美的小技巧,不仅有趣而且对我们普通女孩来说非常实用。

<u>她本来是个普通的女孩,经过自己的努力变成了视频中的令人羡慕的美女。我从她的视频中学到了很多</u> 穿衣服的技巧。选择合适的衣服,可以<u>遮盖自己的身材的缺点,她不仅教会我如何穿着更加得体,同时</u> 也让我更加自信。正因为如此,她收获了一大批粉丝。

看到徐老师从一个小有名气的博主,做到如今拥有上千万粉丝的网红。看到她如此受欢迎,我感到非常 开心。她的每一条视频都很有趣,这样的宝藏博主值得粉丝的喜爱。

# (七) 认真的人

# 15-16: 印象深刻的童年朋友(新题)& 未来想一起工作的家人

Describe a friend from childhood who you remember very well.

Some instructions you can follow:

Who the friend is

How you met him/her

What you used to do together

And explain why you remember this childhood

friend so well.

Describe a family member you might like to work with in the future.

Some instructions that you can follow:

Who this person is

Whether you have worked with this person before

What kind of work you might like to do with this person And explain why you might like to work with this family

member in the future.

# 《印象深刻的童年朋友》

I had a buddy called Michael when I was in elementary school and together, we were thick as thieves. In addition to us being classmates, our dads were colleagues. Since he lived close by, I got to know Michael well when we were little.

We used to play together a lot after school. Michael was lively and full of novel ideas. He liked football, so we played that game often.

Michael has left a deep impression on me not only because we've known each other for so long, but also because he is the smartest, most earnest person I have ever seen. He played a lot, but had good grades and was commended by our teachers all the time. One time he was asked to come up to the front of the class and share the secrets of his academic success. He said that he would check each question and answer at least three times to make sure that he had not misread the question or made a calculation error. That came as quite a shock to me as I was very much a careless person and often gave wrong answers in exams because I had failed to read the questions carefully.

Besides, Michael was always punctual at school. He arrived early for group activities and never broke our appointments. These qualities are hard to find in kids and I rarely get to see them in other classmates or friends.

All in all, Michael is a truly worthy friend. We still keep in touch these days. And I count myself lucky to have known Michael since childhood.

### 中文思路:

在我上小<mark>学的时</mark>候,有个关系非常要好的朋友,他的名字是 Michael。不仅我们是同班同学,我的爸爸 和他的爸爸也在同一个单位工作。我们两家住的很近,所以我在很小的时候就认识他了。

放学后我俩经常在一起玩耍。Michael 是个活泼好动的人,经常会有一些新奇的主意。他很喜欢踢足球,因此我们经常一起踢球。

之所以我对他印象深刻,不单单是因为我们认识了很久,而是因为他是我见过最聪明和认真的人。他虽然贪玩,但是学习成绩很好,经常受到老师的表扬。有一次他上台分享学习经验的时候,他说自己做完每道题目都会检查三次以上,确保自己没有看错题目或者算错数。这让我感到很吃惊,因为我本身是一个粗心大意的人,考试的时候总是因为不认真审题而丢分。

除此之外,他上学时从不迟到早退,每当有集体活动时,他总会提前一阵子到。我跟他约好的事情他从来都不会忘记。这些习惯对于一个小孩子来说是很难得的,我在其他同学和朋友身上很少见到。

总的来说我认为他是一个非常靠谱的朋友,直到现在我们依然有联系。我很庆幸能在小时候遇到 Michael 这样的朋友。

#### 《未来想一起工作的家人》

I had a nice cousin called Michael and we were classmates in primary school. Since he lived close by, I got to know Michael well when we were little.

We used to play together a lot after school. Michael was lively and full of novel ideas. He liked football, so we played that game often.

I want to work with him in the future not only because we've known each other for so long, but also because he is the smartest, most earnest person I have ever seen. He played a lot, but had good grades and was commended by the teachers all the time. One time he was asked to come up to the front of the class and share the secrets of his academic success. He said that he would check each question and answer at least three times to make sure that he had not misread the question or made a calculation error. That came as quite a shock to me as I was very much a careless person and often gave wrong answers in exams because I had failed to read the questions carefully. That is something which I can both admire and learn from. People like him seldom make mistakes at work and can be entrusted with heavy responsibilities.

Since we are both still students, we've never actually worked together. But if there is a chance, I would love to work with my cousin, Michael. I believe we will make a perfect team in whatever we do. With his talent and the chemistry between us, any task will surely be a piece of cake, and be done with in no time.

#### 中文思路:

我有个关系非常要好的表弟,他的名字是 Michael。我们不仅是同班同学,还是表兄弟。我们两家住的 很近,所以我在很小的时候就认识他了。

之所以我想未来跟他一起工作,不单单是因为我们认识了很久,而是因为他是我见过最聪明和认真的人。他虽然贪玩,但是学习成绩很好,经常受到老师的表扬。有一次他上台分享学习经验的时候,他说自己做完每道题目都会检查三次以上,确保自己没有看错题目或者算错数。这让我感到很吃惊,因为我本身是一个粗心大意的人,考试的时候总是因为不认真审题而丢分。我认为这是一种非常值得学习的精神。这样的人在工作中会很少犯错,而且值得托付重任。

因为我们都还是学生,所以我们并没有在一起工作过。如果有机会的话,我很希望和我的表弟 Michael 成为同事。我觉得跟他一起工作会是一件非常好的事情,无论这份工作是什么内容。以他的个人能力,加上我们之间的默契,将会极大地提升我们的工作效率。

# (八)成都

# 17-18: 会推荐给游客的我国某处地方(新题) & 宜居之地

Describe a part of your country that you would recommend to visitors.

Some instructions you can follow:

Which part of your country you would recommend

How you know about this part of your country

Whether many visitors go there

And explain why you would recommend this part of

your country to visitors.

Describe a place you have visited – not your home town – that you would recommend as a good place to live.

Some instructions that you can follow:

Where this place is

How well you know this place

What people can do in this place

And explain why you would recommend this place as a good place to live.

#### 《会推荐给游客的我国某处地方》

I believe Chengdu is a perfect city that I recommend to all my friends to travel to. I first saw Chengdu on TV when I was very young, but it wasn't until my parents took me on a trip to Chengdu after I had graduated from high school, that I could actually visit it. Chengdu has become an Internet-famous in recent years, becoming a popular travel destination during public holidays.

Chengdu is famous for hotpot and Mahjong culture. Hotpot, in particular, has become the symbol of Chengdu. I have to say, the hot pot in Chengdu is the best that I have ever tasted. Every time I travel there, I would happily eat hotpot for seven days a week!

Mahjong culture is also an interesting aspect of Chengdu. It is well known that Chengdu people, both young and old, love to play mahjong. The last time I was in Chengdu, I saw there were all sorts of mahjong clubs in the neighborhood, where old people would gather to play mahjong. Besides, I heard that young people will also play Mahjong mobile games in their free time.

There are two reasons why I recommend Chengdu. For one thing, people are very friendly here. They lead a slow and interesting life, playing Mahjong and having conversations with neighbors. So, it is a relaxing trip for tourist to visit Chengdu. For another, there are so many kinds of delicious foods in Chengdu, people will never feel bored about eating if they live there!

我会向所有游客强烈推荐成都。<u>我很小时候就在电视上看到过成都,直到高中毕业父母带我去成都旅行,</u> 我才第一次去那里。最近几年,成都已经成为了网红城市,每到暑期和节假日,都会成为非常热门的旅 行地。

成都以火锅和麻将闻名。尤其是火锅,已经成为了成都的名片。在成都可能有超过一千家火锅店,这足以见得人们对火锅的喜爱。我不得不说它们的火锅是我吃过的里面最好吃的。所以我每次我去那里,我一周连吃七天吃火锅都不会觉得厌烦。淘宝店铺:安小雅。

麻将文化也是成都有趣的一个方面。众所周知,成都人民无论老少都特别爱打麻将。上次我去成都的时候,就看见街坊里有着各式各样的麻将馆,老人家们都围在里面打麻将。听说年轻人在空闲的时候都会 拿出手机玩几盘麻将。这是在其他地方看不到的有趣文化。 我之所以推荐成都,一方面,这里的人很友好,他们过着轻松而有趣的生活,闲了就打麻将和聊天。来这里旅游让人觉得很放松。另一方面,成都有着众多的美食,人们永远不会在这里饿着自己!

#### 《宜居之地》

I believe Chengdu is a perfect city that I recommend to all my friends as a place to live. I first saw Chengdu on TV when I was very young, but it wasn't until my parents took me on a trip to Chengdu after I had graduated from high school, that I could actually visit it.

Chengdu is famous for hotpot and Mahjong culture. Hotpot, in particular, has become the symbol of Chengdu. When I went there for the first time, I visited several famous hotpot restaurants to try their hot pot. I have to say, the hot pot in Chengdu is the best that I have ever tasted. Every time I travel there, I would happily eat hotpot for seven days a week!

Mahjong culture is also an interesting aspect of Chengdu. It is well known that Chengdu people, both young and old, love to play mahjong. The last time I was in Chengdu, I saw there were all sorts of mahjong clubs in the neighborhood, where old people would gather to play mahjong. Besides, I heard that young people will also play Mahjong mobile games in their free time.

There are two reasons why I recommend Chengdu. For one thing, the culture of working overtime doesn't exist there. People lead a slow and interesting life, playing Mahjong and having conversations with neighbors. For another, there are so many kinds of delicious foods in Chengdu, people will never feel bored about eating if they live there!

我认为成都是我去过的城市中最宜居的。<u>我很小时候就在电视上看到过成都,直到高中毕业父母带我去</u>成都旅行,我才第一次去那里。

成都以火锅和麻将闻名。尤其是火锅,已经成为了成都的名片。在成都可能有超过一千家火锅店,这足以见得人们对火锅的喜爱。我第一次去成都的时候,我去了几家著名的火锅店吃饭。我不得不是它们的火锅是我吃过的里面最好吃的。所以我每次我去那里,我一周连吃七天吃火锅都不会觉得厌烦。

麻将文化也是成都有趣的一个方面。众所周知,成都人民无论老少都特别爱打麻将。上次我去成都的时候,就看见街坊里有着各式各样的麻将馆,老人家们都围在里面打麻将。听说年轻人在空闲的时候都会 拿出手机玩几盘麻将。这是在其他地方看不到的有趣文化。

我之所以推荐成都,一方面,加班文化在成都是不存在的,人们过着轻松而有趣的生活,闲了就打麻将和聊天。另一方面,成都有着众多的美食,人们永远不会在这里饿着自己!

# (九) 意见不合

# 19-20: 与某人意见不合的时候(新题)& 别人询问你意见

Describe a time when you disagreed with somebody about something.

Some instructions you can follow:

Who you disagreed with

What you disagreed about

What the result of this disagreement was

And explain how you felt about disagreeing with this person.

Describe a time when someone asked you for your opinion.

Some instructions that you can follow:

Who asked you for your opinion?

Why this person wanted to know your opinion

What opinion you gave this person

And explain how you felt when this person asked for your opinion.

#### 《与某人意见不合的时候》

Just last weekend, I went shopping with my friend Anna. When it came time for lunch in the afternoon, Anna and I had a disagreement about where to go to eat.

Anna told me she wanted to go to a very popular Japanese restaurant, but I didn't want to wait in line a long time because I was exhausted after a whole day walking. Instead, I preferred to go to a Hot pot restaurant.

In fact, this isn't the first time we have argued. Copyright by AnXiaoYa. Although we are on good terms, we often quarrel over some trifles. At first, I tried to persuade Anna to give up on the idea of Japanese food. I told her I was tired and thirsty, so I wanted to have a meal immediately, but she stuck to it. We had a stand-off, then she told me that she had been craving this Japanese food for a long time and would be very sad if she didn't try it today. Her greatest joy was to taste all kinds of tasty foods. Anyway, we could go to the bubble tea shop and chat there since it was still early, and time flew by. I was a little moved by her words until she promised to buy me a bottle of milk tea, and I finally agreed.

I believe it's quite normal to have disagreements between friends. The most important thing is to make things clear and solve the misunderstanding. Of course, if we can put ourselves in the other's shoes, we may solve the argument quickly and amicably.

就在上周末,我和我的好朋友 anna 一起出去逛街。到了下午吃饭的时候,我和 Anna 因为晚餐吃什么而发生了争吵。

Anna 想要吃一家很热门的日本料理,我则认为逛了一天已经很累了,我并不想花一个小时排队。我想要随便吃点别的。比如隔壁的四川火锅。

事实上,这已经不是我们俩第一次争论了。虽然我们关系很好,但我们俩经常因为一点小事吵架。一开始我尝试为 Anna 放弃日料。我说我现在又累又饿,无法忍受长时间的等待。但她的态度很强硬。我们僵持了一会儿,她告诉我这家日料她已经想吃很久了,如果今天没有试一试她会非常难过。她最大的快乐就是吃各种各样的美食。我们可以先去旁边的奶茶店聊聊天,反正时间还早,一个小时很快就过去了。我听了 anna 的话有些动摇,直到她答应请我喝奶茶,我才勉强同意了。

我认为朋友之间的意见不一致是一件很正常的事,最重要的是把事情说清楚,误会就会很快过去。当然 如果凡事都能站在对方的角度思考一下,矛盾解决的概率就会大大增加。

#### 《别人询问你意见》

Just last weekend, I went shopping with my friend Anna. When it came time for lunch in the afternoon, Anna asked me if I was willing to go to a famous Japanese restaurant nearby. It was a well renowned restaurant, and we might have needed to wait for a long time.

To be honest, I have little interest in going to those internet-famous restaurants. I tried to persuade Anna to give up on the idea of Japanese food. I told her I was tired and thirsty, so I wanted to have a meal immediately. She was disappointed when she knew my opinion. Then she told me that she had been craving this Japanese food for a long time and would be very sad if she didn't try it today. Her greatest joy was to taste all kinds of tasty foods. I was moved after hearing of her yearning. So, I told her we could go to the bubble tea shop and chat there as it was still early, and time flew by. She was so delighted and immediately bought me a bottle of bubble tea in return.

I believe that, as friends, we must listen to and value each other's opinions and feelings. Although Anna really wanted to try the Japanese food, she still asked for my opinion before making a decision. Then she offered me a bottle of bubble tea. I was happy because I felt a sense of respect.

### 中文思路:

就在上周末,我和我的好朋友 anna 一起出去逛街。到了下午吃饭的时候,Anna 开始询问我晚餐是否想去吃附近的一家有名气的日料店。这家店铺的顾客非常多,可能需要等待很久。

事实上我对网红店铺没有多大兴趣,我尝试劝 Anna 放弃日料。我说我现在又累又饿,无法忍受长时间的等待。她听到我的意见后显得很失落,她告诉我这家日料她已经想吃很久了,如果今天没有试一试她会非常难过。她最大的快乐就是吃各种各样的美食。看到 anna 期待的眼神,我不想让朋友失望,我告诉她我们可以先去旁边的奶茶店聊聊天,反正时间还早,一个小时很快就过去了。Anna 听到我的话显得非常开心,立刻表示可以请我喝奶茶。

我认为朋友之间,一定要尊重对<mark>方的意见和感受。Anna</mark> 虽然很想吃网红日料,但她没有擅自决定,依然询问了我的意见。后来还<mark>请我</mark>喝奶茶。她很尊重我并且照顾我的感受。我感到很开心。

# (十) 男生女生向前冲

# 21-22: 喜欢的节目(新题) & 想参加的比赛

Describe a programme that you enjoyed very much

(e.g. on TV or the internet).

Some instructions you can follow:

What the programme was about

Where you watched this programme

Who you watched it with

And explain why you enjoyed this programme so

much.

Describe a competition (e.g. music, cooking, sport) you would like to take part in.

Some instructions that you can follow:

What the competition is

Where and when it happens

What you have to do to win the competition

And explain why you would like to take part in this

competition.

# 《喜欢的节目》

Men and Women Go Go Go! is my favorite TV show. I watched this show at a very young age, and assume it is still airing today.

It is an entertaining reality show based around water. The organizers will build a large track on the water and set obstacles in advance. The participants need to reach the destination by passing through different obstacles. And the one who arrives at the destination in the shortest time wins some prizes for daily use, like refrigerators, washing machines, etc.

I think it is very interesting. On the one hand, there are many funny and unpredictable obstacles. For example, a participant has to jump over several rotating disks in a row or avoid suddenly being knocked with sticks while going forward. On the other hand, if the participant unfortunately slips or is hit by an obstacle, they will fall into the pool. Then, they fail. I laugh every time I see some participants fall into the water.

I usually watch this show with my family. We laugh together and discuss the show. Watching the show together lightens my mood and relaxes me.

#### 中文思路:

男生女生向前冲<mark>是我非常我喜欢</mark>的一个综艺节目。我在很小的时候就看过了。没记错的话它现在还有在 电视上<mark>面播出。</mark>

它是一个水上娱乐类的真人秀。组织者会提前搭建好一个非常大的水上障碍赛场地,然后参赛者们需要 尽快地穿越各种困难的障碍抵达终点。成功到达终点并且用时最短的选手将会成为胜利者。他们可以得 到非常实用的奖品,比如冰箱,洗衣机等等。

这是一个非常有趣的电视节目。一方面是因为它设置了非常多的有趣的、稀奇古怪的水上障碍,例如参赛者需连续跳过几个转动的圆盘,亦或者参赛者需边前进边躲避突如其来的棍子。另一方面就是如果参赛者们不幸滑到或者被障碍撞到,他们就会掉进场地的水池中,这就意味着他们失败了。我每次看到参赛者落水都会哈哈大笑。

我喜欢和家人一起看这个节目。我们会一起哈哈大笑,并且讨论节目里面的内容。这个过程让我感到非常轻松,所有的烦恼都会一扫而空。

#### 《想参加的比赛》

Men and Women Go Go! is the competition that I am eager to participate in. If my memory serves me correctly, the competition is organized every few months. Although I don't know exactly where it will be held, I can find it out by searching online, which is a simple matter.

It is an entertaining reality show based around water. The organizers will build a large track on the water and set obstacles in advance. The participants need to reach the destination by passing through different obstacles. And the one who arrives at the destination in the shortest time wins some prizes for daily use, like refrigerators, washing machines.

I don't think I need too much preparation to take part in this competition. It's a light-hearted game, so it's not for professional athletes. Copyright by AnXiaoYa. I believe I just need to run every day for a month or two in advance and I should be ready.

I think it is a very interesting competition. On the one hand, there are many funny and unpredictable obstacles. For example, a participant has to jump over several rotating disks in a row or avoid suddenly being knocked sticks while going forward. On the other hand, if the participant unfortunately slips or is hit by an obstacle, they will fall into the pool. Then, they fail.

Every time I watch it, I don't understand how the contestants could be so stupid. How could they be so easily disturbed by the obstacles and fall into the water? So, I really want to have a try and see if I could successfully complete the competition and win the prize.

#### 中文思路:

男生女生向前冲是我非常想参加的一个比赛。如果我没记错的话这是每隔几个月就组织一次的比赛。虽然不清楚具体在哪里举办,但只要我上网搜一下就能查出来,这是一件简单的事情。

它是一个水上娱乐类的真人秀。组织者会提前<mark>搭建好一个非常大的水上障碍赛场地,然后参赛者们需要</mark> 尽快地穿越各种困难的障碍抵达终点。成功到达终点并且用时最短的选手将会成为胜利者。他们可以得 到非常实用的奖品,比如冰箱,洗衣机等等。

要参加这个比赛的话,我觉得我不需要做过多的准备。这是很亲民的比赛,并不是给专业运动员参加的。 我觉得我只需要提前一两个月每天跑跑步,应该就能准备好了。

这是一个非常有趣的比赛。一方面是因为它设置了非常多的有趣的、稀奇古怪的水上障碍,例如参赛者 需连续跳过几个转动的圆盘,亦或者参赛者需边前进边躲避突如其来的棍子。另一方面就是如果参赛者 们不幸滑到或者被障碍撞到,他们就会掉进场地的水池中,这就意味着他们失败了。

我每次看的时<mark>候都觉</mark>得参赛者们很笨,怎么会如此轻易地就被障碍干扰掉进水里。所以我非常想尝试一下,看看自己能不能成功完成比赛取得奖品。

# (十一) 堵车

# 23-24: 决定等待的时刻(新题)& 交通拥堵的时刻

Describe a time when you made a decision to wait for something.

Some instructions you can follow:

What you decided to wait for

What you did while you were waiting

How you felt while you were waiting

And explain why deciding to wait was a good/bad decision.

Describe a situation when you had to spend a long time in a traffic jam.

Some instructions that you can follow:

When and where the traffic jam happened

What you did while you were in the traffic jam

How you felt about having to spend time in the traffic jam

And explain what problems the delay caused you.

# A:《决定等待的时刻》&B: 《交通拥堵的时刻》

On an afternoon not long ago, I decided to take a taxi instead of the metro due to the hot weather. Unexpectedly, I was stuck in a huge traffic jam. After driving along the viaduct for some time, the car became slower and slower.

I did not mind that at all in the beginning because taking a taxi was much more comfortable than taking a bus. I even took out my cellphone and played a level of a game. But when I returned from the game to reality, I found I was still on the same viaduct. I started to become anxious. On the one hand, I was bored; on the other hand, the taxi kept the meter running when stationary, and so the traffic jam would cost me more than a dozen yuan extra. After a while, the taxi had moved only a few hundred meters forward. There was a time when I even wanted to get out of the car and walk. However, it was a dangerous thing to walk on high-speed lanes given the fact that the congestion had occurred on a viaduct. Ultimately, I had no other option but to wait. My anxiety started to grow and time seemed to go by more slowly.

A: It wasn't until half an hour later that the taxi managed to exit from the viaduct. Finally, I arrived at my destination one hour later than expected, at a doubled taxi fare. I don't think it's a wise decision to wait when I'm stuck in traffic, because I can't predict how long I'll have to wait. The dual loss in time and money made me frustrated. It seems, after all, that the subway is a more appropriate means of transportation for me. It costs only one-tenth of a taxi's fare.

B: It wasn't until half an hour later that the taxi managed to exit from the viaduct. It turned out that a serious accident had occurred around the exit: a truck rolled over at the middle of the lane, causing a serious traffic jam. Finally, I arrived at my destination one hour later than expected, at a doubled taxi fare. The dual loss in time and money made me frustrated. It seems, after all, that the subway is a more appropriate means of transportation for me. It costs only one-tenth of a taxi's fare, without causing concerns about traffic congestion.

#### 中文思路:

不久前的一个下午,因为天气太热,我放弃了坐地铁,选择了打车出门。令我没有想到的是路上遇到了大塞车。当车进入高架桥行驶了一段路后,车速变得越来越缓慢。

起初我并不着急,因为出租车比公交车要舒适的多,我甚至拿手机打了一把游戏。打完游戏回过神来,我竟然还在高架桥上。我开始有些着急了。一方面是因为无聊,另一方面出租车等待也是需要付费的,

交通拥堵已经让我多花了十几块钱车费。时间又过去了一阵,我的车大概只前进了几百米。我一度想下车步行,但拥堵发生在高架桥上,在高速路上步行是一件危险的事。最后我只能选择继续等待。我开始变得焦虑,时间仿佛也过的越来越慢。

A: 大约过了半个小时,出租车才驶出高架桥。最后,我比计划时间迟了一小时才到达目的地。车费也多花了两倍。我认为堵车的时候选择继续等待并不是一个明智的决定,因为我无法预知自己需要等待多久。时间和金钱的双重损失让我非常懊恼。淘宝店铺:安小雅。看来还是地铁更适合我。地铁的花费只有打车的十分之一

B: 大约过了半个小时,出租车才驶出高架桥。高架桥的出口处发生了严重的事故,一辆货车侧翻在路中央,因此导致了严重的交通问题。最后,我比计划时间迟了一小时才到达目的地。车费也多花了两倍。时间和金钱的双重损失让我非常懊恼,看来还是地铁更适合我。地铁的花费只有打车的十分之一,还不用担心堵车。

# (十二) 邻居

# 25-26: 有趣的邻居 & 聊得来的朋友

Describe an interesting neighbor.

Describe a friend you enjoy talking with.

Some instructions that you can follow: Some instructions that you can follow:

Who the neighbor How you first met this friend

How you met this neighbor What kind of person this friend is

How often you see this neighbor What you talk about with this friend

And explain why you find this neighbor interesting. And explain why you enjoy talking with this friend.

I think my friend Anna is a very interesting person and I enjoy chatting with her. We both love pets, so there's just so much for us to talk about in that regard.

We live in the same residential quarter, and first met while walking our dogs; mine a poodle and hers a Pomeranian. I always walk my dog after 10 pm, and often meet her in the elevator, so we both got to know each other. On weekends, we would go to the park to walk our dogs together.

Anna is very kind and funny. She is very caring and treats her pet as if it was her baby. And what's even more interesting is that she previously spent time studying animal nutrition. She even knows how to deal with some common diseases. So, I always learn something new quickly by talking to her. For example, I learned what is bad for a dog's health, such as the additives in pet treats, and what foods are good for its health. She also taught me how to make pet treats and pet cakes with chicken. Once, when my dog had diarrhea, Anna sent me to the pharmacy to buy some human medications for my dog, and it recovered just a few days later. Animal clinics usually cost me a lot, so this really helped me save a ton of money. I'm grateful to have such a good friend!

#### 中文思路:

我认为我的朋友(邻居)anna 是个非常有趣的人,和她聊天总让我觉得开心。我们都很喜欢宠物,因此有很多共同话题。

我和 Anna 住在同一个小区,我们是遛狗的时候认识的。当我在家的时候,我总在晚上 10 点后才遛狗。而我经常会在电梯里遇见她,渐渐的我们两个就熟悉了起来。周末还会约着一起去公园遛狗。我养了一只贵宾犬,而她养了一只博美。

Anna 是个善良又有趣的人。她非常有爱心,对自己的宠物就像孩子一样。而更令我感到有趣的是,她会花时间去研究宠物营养学。甚至一些简单的疾病,她都知道该如何处理。和她聊天总能让我快速学到一些新东西。她曾经告诉我外面售卖的宠物零食有添加剂,对狗狗健康是有害的。她还会和我分享什么食物是对宠物健康有益的。认识 anna 后,我学会了怎么用鸡肉自制宠物零食,甚至学会了自制宠物蛋糕。有一次我家的狗狗拉肚子, anna 指导我去药房买了一些人用药品给狗狗吃,几天之后我的狗狗就康复了。通常宠物医院是非常昂贵的,这帮我节省了一大笔费用。我很庆幸有这样的一位好朋友(邻居)。

# (十三)帮助小孩

# 27-28:被赞扬的时刻 & 帮助小孩

Describe an occasion when somebody said something positive about some work that you did.

Who said something positive?

What kind of work you did

Why this person was positive about your work

And explain how you felt when you heard this positive comment.

Describe a time when you helped child.

Some instructions that you can follow:

Who the child was

When and where you helped the child

How you helped the child

And explain how you felt about helping this child.

Not long ago during the holidays, my cousin's academic performance improved thanks to my help. So, my aunt praised me highly at the family gathering. It made me so proud to be recognized by my elders.

My cousin, who is in junior high school this year, is not performing well academically. He even failed in English and Maths. My aunt hired a tutor for him, but my cousin was very rebellious and did not do the homework assigned by the tutor. So, she turned to me in the hope that I could help him with his studies. We had been very close since childhood and often played together. Subsequently, my aunt thought he would listen to what I had to say.

I didn't rush to tutor him on homework, but first shared some of my own experiences and study methods with him. And I found that he didn't reject me, but listened carefully to my ideas. I tried to start with the basics, and he seemed to concentrate a bit harder. My aunt was grateful that I was able to smooth out her communication with my cousin. His attitude toward learning has changed significantly since then. After all, she and my uncle had tried many times but with counterproductive results. I even felt a little embarrassed when my aunt kept praising me. Actually, I was happy to be able to help my cousin, because we are not only relatives but also good friends who grew up together. Our experiences have a lot in common, and our parents oftentimes did not really understand what we were thinking about. Copyright by AnXiaoYa.

### 中文思路:

不久前的假期,我的表弟在我的帮助下,学习成绩有了一定的提高。我的姑姑在家庭聚会上大力表扬了我。能得到长辈的肯定,这让我觉得很骄傲。

我的表弟<mark>今年上初中</mark>,学习成绩不理想。尤其是数学和英语,连及格都很难达到。姑姑给他请了家庭老师,可表弟非常叛逆,老师布置的任务完全不做。因此姑姑找到了我,希望我能帮表弟补习。我们从小关系就很好,经常一起玩。姑姑认为我说的话,表弟应该听得进去。

我并没有着急给表弟补习,而是给他讲了一些我自己的经历。并且分享了一些我自己总结的学习方法。我感觉他对我没有强烈的排斥,我说的话他都有认真听。我尝试从最基础的开始讲,他似乎也专心一些了。姑姑很感谢我能够帮她和表弟沟通,表弟和我聊过之后,学习态度有了明显的好转。毕竟她和姑父沟通了很多次,都是适得其反。姑姑一直不停的表扬我,我甚至有些不好意思。事实上,我很开心能够帮助到表弟,我们不仅是亲戚,更是一起长大的好朋友。他经历过的很多事情都是我曾经经历过的。很多时候父母并不能真正理解我们在想什么。

# (十四) 跳刘畊宏

# 29-30: 令你惊喜而又开心的事物 & 近期改善生活的变动

Describe something that surprised you and made you happy.

Some instructions that you can follow:

What the surprise was

How you found out about the surprise

What you did after you found out

And explain why the surprise made you happy.

Describe a change you made in your life recently that was positive.

Some instructions that you can follow:

What the change was

Why you decided to make this change

Whether anyone helped you to make this change And explain why it was a positive change to make.

Recently, I was surprised to find that Liu Genghong's fitness videos monopolized trending topics in my Moments on WeChat. A few weeks ago, my roommate also started to watch his live streams and started working out. It was then that I learned that an actor named Liu Genghong, who went viral because of a workout livestream on Douyin (China's version of TikTok), had gained 40 million fans in just one month.

Recently our school has been locked down due to COVID-19, so I can barely go out and spend every day in my dorm checking my phone, which is exhausting. Liu Genghong's workout is so popular that I decided to give it a try with my roommate, which might help relieve my muscle soreness. The aerobics are easy to learn, and I did them for an hour straight on the first day. Every time we finished a set of moves, Liu would take a five-minute break to chat with everyone, which also made the exercise less boring.

I've always been lazy, and exercising is a hard thing for me to stick to, but I was surprised and pleased by these fitness exercises I found by accident. Before I knew it, I had been exercising for a week, which is a positive change for me to keep fit. The feeling of sweating makes me feel good and my unhappiness seems to be wiped off along with the sweat. Of course, what makes me most happy is that I lost one kilogram this week.

# 中文思路:

最近一段时间,我的朋友圈被刷屏了。每天晚饭后,我打开手机刷朋友圈,都会看到很多朋友同时在跳健身操。这让我感到十分惊讶。直到前几周,我的舍友也跟着直播跳了起来。我才开始了解,一位名叫刘畊宏的演员,因为在抖音直播健身而爆火。

最近我们学校因为新冠病毒被封锁了。这导致我几乎出不了门,每天都在宿舍玩手机,对此我感到很疲惫。看到刘畊宏的健身操如此火爆,我决定和我的舍友一起运动起来。这或许会改善我肩膀酸痛的问题。 刘畊宏的健身<mark>操简单</mark>易学,我第一天做就连续跳了一个小时。每次做完一套动作他都会休息 5 分钟和大家聊聊天,这也让运动变得不再枯燥。

我一直是个很懒的人,运动对我来说是一件很难坚持的事,但是无意中发现的健身操让我感到惊喜和开心。不知不觉中,我已经坚持运动一周了,我认为这是一个积极的改变,运动有利于保持健康。出汗的感觉让我很舒服,不开心的事也仿佛随着汗水一起消失了。当然,最让我开心的还是这一周我瘦了2斤。

# 31: 保持健康的方法

Describe something you do that you think is important for keeping fit and healthy.

Some instructions that you can follow:

What you do

How often you do it

Who you do it with

And explain why you think this activity is important for keeping fit and healthy.

Recently our school has been locked down due to COVID-19. So, I can barely go out and have to spend every day in my dorm checking my phone, about which I feel exhausted. During this time, an actor named Liu GentHong has gone viral for his live fitness show on Tiktok.

Liu GengHong's workout is so popular that I decided to work out with my roommate, which might help relieve my muscle soreness. The aerobics are easy to learn, and I did them for an hour straight on the first day. Now I will do his aerobics almost every day. Every time we finished a set of moves, Liu would take a five-minute break to chat with everyone, which also made the exercise less boring.

Finding a workout buddy is important. Luckily, my roommate Anna joined me. Recently, we try to remind and supervise each other. Whenever I want to be lazy, she always urges me to exercise.

I've always been lazy, and exercising is a hard thing for me to stick to, but I was surprised and happy by the fitness exercises I found by accident. Before I knew it, I have been exercising for a month, which is a positive change for me to keep fit. The feeling of sweating makes me feel good and any unhappiness seems to be wiped off along with the sweat. Of course, what makes me most happy is that I lost one kilogram this week.

### 中文思路:

最近我们学校因为新冠病毒被封锁了。这导致我几乎不出门,每天都在宿舍玩手机,我感到很疲惫。同时,一位名叫刘畊宏的演员,因为在抖音直播健身而爆火。看到刘畊宏的健身操如此火爆,我决定和我的舍友一起运动起来。这或许会改善我肩膀酸痛的问题。刘畊宏的健身操简单易学,我第一天做就连续跳了一个小时。现在我几乎每天都会跳健身操。每次做完一套动作他都会休息 5 分钟和大家聊聊天,这也让运动变得不再枯燥。

找到一个一起运动的伙伴是件很重要的事。比如我的舍友 anna。我们可以互相提醒和监督。当我想偷懒的时候,他都会督促我运动起来。淘宝店铺:安小雅。

我一直是个很懒的人,运动对我来说是一件很难坚持的事,但是无意中发现的健身操让我感到惊喜和开心。不知不觉中,我已经坚持运动一个月了,我认为这是一个积极的改变。运动有利于保持健康。出汗的感觉让我很舒服,不开心的事也仿佛随着汗水一起消失了。当然,最让我开心的还是这一周我瘦了2斤。

# 32-33: 困难的决定 & 完成的难事(新题)

Describe a difficult decision you made that had a very good result.

Some instructions that you can follow:

What the decision was

Why it was difficult to make the decision

What helped you to decide

And explain why the decision you made had such a good result.

something that was difficult.

Describe a time when you succeeded in doing

Some instructions you can follow:

What you succeeded in doing

Why it was difficult to do

How much help you needed

And explain how you felt when you succeeded in

doing this difficult thing.

For a long time, I have wanted to exercise regularly. I've always been a lazy person, and exercise was a hard thing for me to keep up until recently an actor named Liu GengHong has gone viral because of a workout livestream on Tiktok. A great many people have been following him to do aerobics, so do I.

Recently our school has been locked down due to COVID-19. So, I can barely go out and have to spend every day in my dorm checking my phone, about which I feel exhausted. My dorm is crowded and small, which is not a good place for exercise. I was also worried that doing a big jump would lead to complaints from downstairs. It was not an easy decision. A few weeks ago, my roommate Anna jumped on the bandwagon and was the first to do aerobics in the dorm. Anna's behavior instantly ignited my passion for fitness.

Now I do his aerobics almost every day. Every time we finished a set of moves, Liu would take a five-minute break to chat with everyone, which also made the exercise less boring. Before I knew it, I have been exercising for a month, which is a positive change for me to keep fit. The feeling of sweating makes me feel good and any unhappiness seems to be wiped off along with the sweat. Of course, what makes me most happy is that I lost one kilogram this week and my muscles are no longer sore.

It is difficult to make a hard decision. But once we have made up our mind to do it and keep on doing it, we will make it.

中文思路:

很长一段时间,我都想要保持规律运动。我一直是个很懒的人,运动对我来说是一件很难坚持的事,直到。<u>最近一段时间,一位名叫刘畊宏的演员,因为在抖音直播健身而爆火。</u>全民都在跟着他跳健身操,我决定也要跳起来。淘宝店铺:安小雅。

最近我们学校因为新冠病毒被封锁了。这导致我几乎不出门,每天都在宿舍玩手机,我感到很疲惫。宿舍拥挤又狭小,并不是运动的好选择。同时我也担心大幅度的蹦跳会引来楼下投诉。这并不是一个轻松的决定。直到几周前,我的舍友 anna 跟上了这股热潮,率先在宿舍跳起了健身操。Anna 的行为瞬间点燃了我健身的热情。

刘畊宏的健身操简单易学,我第一天做就连续跳了一个小时。每次做完一套动作他都会休息 5 分钟和大家聊聊天,这也让运动变得不再枯燥。

不知不觉中,我已经坚持运动一个月了,我认为这是一个积极的改变,运动有利于保持健康。出汗的感觉让我很舒服,不开心的事也仿佛随着汗水一起消失了。当然,最让我开心的是这一周我不仅瘦了 2 斤,肩膀酸痛的问题也有所改善。虽然做出决定很难,但是只要勇敢尝试,习惯形成后,一定会收获一个好的结果。

# (十五) 图书馆自习

# 34-35: 安静的地方 & 帮助你集中注意力的事物

Describe a quiet place where you like to spend time.

Some instructions that you can follow:

Where this quiet place is

How you found this quiet place

How often you spend time in this quiet place

And explain why you like spending time in this

quite place.

Describe something that helps you to concentrate on

work/study.

Some instructions that you can follow:

What it is you do

Where and when you do this

Whether you always do the same thing

And explain how much this helps you to concentrate

on work/study.

### 《安静的地方》

Usually, I go to the library to do some reading when I am alone. It is really a quiet place and I can totally concentrate on my reading or studying. The first time that I visited the library was when my roommate Anna took me there. I find there are no other places on campus quieter and more suitable for study than the library.

As a matter of fact, almost every Saturday afternoon, I love to go there and read for a while. If I feel bored, I will also go to library to do some reading. While reading in the library, my mindset is the most placid and calm.

So, whenever I want to concentrate on my studies or do some reading, I will go there. There are four people in our dormitory, so it is usually noisy. My roommates often talk or play games in the dormitory which makes it hard for me to concentrate. A quiet place can help me significantly to study more efficiently. Besides, when I don't have to study, I like to go to the library to read all kinds of interesting books. It is free for students to borrow books. I especially enjoy literature and history books. When I am immersed in the story, all my troubles seem to disappear.

I'm a very easily distracted person, and the library really gives me the perfect environment to focus on what I want to do. I feel completely comfortable and relaxed in the library.

通常,当我一个人的时候,我喜欢去图书馆看书。这是一个安静的地方,我能集中我的注意力读书或者学习。第一次去图书馆是我的舍友 anna 带我去的,从那以后我就喜欢上了图书馆。我发现在校园里,没有比图书馆更安静,更适合学习的地方了。

事实上,几乎每个星期六下午,我都喜欢去那里读一会儿书。平时如果我感到无聊,也会去图书馆看看。 在图书馆看书的时候,我的心态是最平和和平静的。

每当我想专注于学习的时候,我都会去图书馆。我们宿舍住了四个人,宿舍通常很嘈杂,我的舍友经常 会在宿舍说话或者打游戏。这些声音让我很难集中注意力。</u>安静的地方能让我的学习效率显著提升。另 外,在不用复习的时候,我喜欢去图书馆看各种有趣的课外书。学生借阅图书是免费的。我尤其喜欢文 学和历史类的书籍。当我沉浸在故事情节中,所有的烦恼似乎都不存在了。

我是个很容易被干扰的人,图书馆真的给了我一个完美的环境,让我能专注于我想做的事情。这里让我感到自由和放松。

### 《帮你集中注意力的事》

Usually, I go to the library to do some reading when I am alone. I can totally concentrate on my reading or studying in the library. I find there are no other places on campus quieter and more suitable for study than the library.

As a matter of fact, almost every Saturday afternoon, I love to go there and read for a while. If I feel bored, I will also go to library to do some reading. While reading in the library, my mindset is the most placid and calm.

There are four people in our dormitory, so it is usually noisy. My roommates often talk or play games in the dormitory which makes it hard for me to concentrate. A quiet place can help me significantly to study more efficiently. So, whenever I want to concentrate on my studies or do some reading, I will go to the library.

When I go there, I rarely take my phone with me. Because I want to avoid being affected by information and the temptation of social media. I usually only bring my books or homework there, though sometimes I will also bring headphones. I'm a very easily distracted person, and the library really gives me the perfect environment to focus on what I want to do.

# 中文思路:

通常,当我一个人的时候,我喜欢去图书馆看书。图书馆能让我集中注意力来读书或者学习。我发现在校园里,没有比图书馆更安静,更适合读书学习的地方了。

事实上,几乎每个星期六下午,我都喜欢去那里读一会儿书。平时如果我感到无聊,也会去图书馆看看。 在图书馆看书的时候,我的心态是最平和和平静的。

我们宿舍住了四个人,宿舍通常很嘈杂,我的舍友经常会在宿舍说话或者打游戏。这些声音让我很难集中注意力。安静的地方能让我的学习效率显著提升。每当我想专注于学习的时候,我都会去图书馆。

去图书馆的时候,我基本不会带上我的手机。因为我要避免被各种信息影响,以及拒绝社交媒体对我的诱惑。我通常只会带上我的书本或者作业去图书馆,有时候也会带上耳机。<u>我是个很容易被干扰的人,</u>图书馆真的给了我一个完美的环境,让我能专注于我想做的事情。

# (十六) 过春节包饺子

# 36-37: 忙碌的时刻 & 庆祝重要事件

Describe a time you were very busy.

Describe an important event in your life that you

Some instructions that you can follow: celebrated.

When this time was Some instructions that you can follow:

Why you were so busy What this event was

What you did to deal with the situation Who celebrated the event with you

And explain how you felt about being so busy

How you celebrated the event

And explain why the event was important to you.

### 《忙碌的时刻》

The Chinese people attach great importance to the Spring Festival. It is rather exciting to stay with the family on this day.

This year was impressive because I was engaged in preparing for the Spring Festival with my family. My mother and I began to clean up half a month before this date, including the bedding, curtains, furniture, floor, and windows. In addition to the New Year purchases we needed, we also bought gifts for relatives. My days were very busy, even though I was only helping my mom with these trivial things.

To do things more efficiently, I made a plan ahead of time and followed the schedule every day. I tried saving time by, for example, putting the curtains into the washing machine and cleaning rooms at the same time. I can't believe how diligent I became at that time.

During this period, my family and I were busy, but we were happy. Copyright by AnXiaoYa. I cherish the Spring Festival very much due to the rare days spent with them as I attended college. It is delightful to cook meals with my mom and make dumplings with other family members. This engagement makes me feel contented and fulfilled.

春节是中国人心目中最重要的节日,和家人一起过春节是很令人期待的事。

今年过年令我印象深刻,因为那段时间我和家里人一起忙于准备庆祝春节。在过年前半个月我和妈妈就 开始打扫卫生了。床上用品和窗帘都要拆下来清洗。家中的家具,地板和玻璃都要擦干净。除了准备年 货,还得购买过年送亲戚的礼物。虽然我只是给我妈妈打下手,但这些琐碎的事情依然使我非常忙碌。

为了提高效率,我早早就定出了一个计划,每天按照计划表的内容执行。我会尽量节约时间,比如把窗帘丢进洗衣机后,我可以用这段时间收拾房间。我自己都不敢相信,一向懒惰的我,会在这一段时间变得无比勤劳。

虽然过年期间非常忙碌,但我们全家人都很开心。春节是对我来说很重要的节日。自从上大学之后我很少回家,全家团聚的日子也显得格外珍贵。和妈妈一起做饭,又或是全家一起包饺子都让我觉得很开心。即使很忙,但这样的忙碌让我感觉充实和有意义。

#### 《庆祝的重要节日》

The Chinese people attach great importance to the Spring Festival. It is rather exciting to stay with the family on this day.

This year was impressive because I was engaged in preparing for the Spring Festival with my family. My mother and I began to clean up half a month before this date, including the bedding, curtains, furniture, floor, and windows. In addition to the New Year purchases we needed, we also bought gifts for relatives. Most importantly, we bought dumpling wrappers and minced pork in preparation to make dumplings on the Chinese New Year's Eve

That night, my whole family sat together and made dumplings while watching TV, which is a must for our family during the Spring Festival every year. I cherish this activity with all my heart. It brings our family closer to each other. It is wonderful and delightful to eat dumplings which we have made with our own hands. Normally, we are very anxious and worried, and there are seldom opportunities for everyone to get together. Perhaps what I cherish the most is not the dumplings, but rather the rare reunion.

A: During this period, my family and I were busy, but we were happy. I cherish the Spring Festival very much due to the rare days spent with them as I attended college. It is delightful to cook meals with my mom and make dumplings with other family members. This engagement makes me feel contended and fulfilled.

B: During this period, my families and I were busy, but we were happy. We also planned to go to the seaside of Sanya to celebrate the Spring Festival next year. We can't say whether the Spring Festival is successfully celebrated or not. It is worthwhile as long as the family gets together, regardless of what we eat or where we are.

中文思路:

春节是中国人心目中最重要的节日,和家人一起过春节是很令人期待的事。

今年过年令我印象深刻,因为那段时间我和家里人一起忙于准备庆祝春节。在过年前半个月我和妈妈就 开始打扫卫生了。床上用品和窗帘都要拆下来清洗。家中的家具,地板和玻璃都要擦干净。除了准备年 货,还得购买过年送亲戚的礼物。最重要的是,我们买了猪肉馅和饺子皮,准备在除夕夜包饺子吃。

除夕那一晚,我们全家人都坐在一起,边看电视边包饺子。这是每年我们家过春节必须要做的一件事。 我非常喜欢这项活动,他让我们一家人拉近了彼此之间的距离。平时大家都很忙,所有人能聚在一起是 非常难得的。或许我珍惜的并不是饺子,而是这一份难得的团圆。

A: 虽然过年期间非常忙碌,但我们全家人都很开心。春节是对我来说很重要的节日。自从上大学之后 我很少回家,全家团聚的日子也显得格外珍贵。和妈妈一起做饭,又或是全家一起包饺子都让我觉得很 开心。

B: 虽然过年期间非常忙碌,但我们全家人都很开心。我们还计划了明天春节去三亚旅游,在海边游玩并庆祝春节。其实过春节算不上成不成功,只要家里人团聚在一起,无论吃什么或者在哪里过,这就够了。

# 38: 喜欢的传统物品

Describe a traditional product made in your country which you like.

What this product is

When you first tried this product

How this product is made

And explain why you like this traditional product.

My favourite Chinese traditional product is dumplings. It is one of the most famous traditional foods in our country.

Dumplings are made with dumpling wrappers and minced pork. My family used to make dumplings ourselves. I have been eating dumplings since I was a child. Sometimes they also go to the supermarket to buy frozen dumplings. In fact, they taste similar, but I actually prefer homemade dumplings, because usually during the Spring Festival, my whole family will sit together and make dumplings while watching TV, which is a must for our family during the Spring Festival every year.

In China, we believe that dumplings contain our good fortunes for the coming year. People in certain places will often choose one dumpling to hide a coin inside. It is thought that whoever eats the dumpling that contains the coin is the luckiest person and shall be extremely fortunate in the following year.

I very much love to eat dumplings, and making dumplings with my family is rather meaningful. Normally, my parents and I are very busy and anxious, and there are seldom opportunities for everyone to get together. I cherish such activity with all my heart. Perhaps what I cherish the most are not the dumplings, but rather the rare reunion.

### 中文思路:

我喜欢的传统产品就是饺子。饺子是我国最著名的传统食物之一。

饺子使用面皮和猪肉馅做的。淘宝店铺:安小雅。我家里人以前经常自己包饺子,我从小就经常吃饺子。 有时候他们也会去超市买速冻饺子回来。其实两者味道差不多,我其实更喜欢自家包的饺子,因为一般 过年的时候,我们全家人都会坐在一起,边看电视边包饺子,这是每年我们家过春节必须要做的一件事。

饺子承载着我<mark>们对于来</mark>年的美好期望。有些地方的人喜欢在所有饺子中选出一只,给里面放一枚硬币。 谁吃到有硬币的饺子,就代表他是最幸运的人,接下来会有好运气。

我非常<mark>喜欢吃饺子,和家人</mark>一起包饺子是很有意义的。通常情况下,我和父母都很忙,很焦虑,很少有机会大家聚在一起。我非常珍惜这样的活动。也许我最珍惜的不是饺子,而是难得的团圆。

# 39: 收到钱作为礼物(新题)

Describe a time when someone gave you some money as a gift.

Some instructions you can follow:

Who gave you the money

Why they gave it to you

What you did with it

And explain how you felt about receiving this money.

I receive lucky money which is normally contained in red envelopes as a present from my grandparents every spring festival. The money presents are blessings and expectations from the older generation. This is a kind of tradition in China and I always look forwards to the lunar new year, due to the lucky money that I will receive. Every Spring Festival, I receive thousands of yuan of luck money, which is equivalent to several months' pin money.

Normally, with the money, I would like to buy some new clothes because wearing new clothes at the beginning of the year is believed as a good start and good luck in China. Also, I will buy some presents for my family and friends, because the spring festival is a great time to exchange gifts and express wishes to each other. As for how I felt about it, I certainly felt excited and happy, because with the money, I could buy the items that I had desired for a long time. And also, I could feel the love from my family. Copyright by AnXiaoYa. I remembered my grandfather always prepared the money and new red envelopes many days before the new year; an extra letter would be attached to the envelope which was full of his wishes and blessing for me, for example, in one of his letters, he wanted me to study harder and get good grades; eat more and get stronger. So I felt I was loved by the family. And that is my story of receiving money as a present.

#### 中文思路

每年春节,我都会收到祖父母给我的红包。这些钱代表着老一代的祝福和期望。这是中国的一种传统, 我总是期待着农历新年,因为我将获得巨大的收入。每年春节我都会收到好几千元的红包,这相当于我 几个月的零花钱。

通常,用这些钱,我想买一些新衣服,因为在中国,在年初穿新衣服被认为是一个好的开始和好运。另外,我会给我的家人和朋友买一些礼物,因为春节是一个交换礼物和表达祝福的好时机。至于我的感受,我当然感到兴奋和幸福,因为有了钱,我可以买到我渴望已久的东西。同时,我也能感受到家人的爱。我记得我的祖父总是在新年的前几天准备钱和新的红包;信封里会附一封额外的信,信中充满了他对我的祝福,例如,在他的一封信中,他希望我更加努力学习,取得好成绩;多吃点,强壮一点。所以我觉得我被家人爱着。这就是我接受金钱作为礼物的故事。

# (十七) 丢包

# 40-41: 用手机做重要的事 & 在公共场所遗失物品

Describe a time when you used a phone to do something important.

Some instructions that you can follow:

When and where you used the phone

What you used the phone for

Why it was important to do this

And explain what happened as a result of using the phone.

Describe an occasion when you lost something in a public place

Some instructions that you can follow:

What you lost

When and where you lost this thing

What you did to try and find it

And explain how you felt about losing this thing in a public place.

I remember it was several months ago that I lost my wallet while hanging out at a mall with my classmate Anna. Luckily enough, the wallet found its way back to me later. It was the weekend if I remember correctly, and we had just finished our final exams. We were in such a great mood that we decided to go to the mall for lunch before going shopping there.

A while after lunch, I found that my wallet was gone. At first, I believed it had gotten stolen and was extremely frustrated. In my wallet, there were all my credentials and bank cards. It would be a lot of trouble to get them all replaced, although the sum of money lost wasn't large. But then, Anna asked me to think back to the last time I used my wallet. It didn't take long for me to recall that it was when I paid for my lunch. I pulled out my phone promptly and made a call to the restaurant. The restaurant manager answered it and agreed to help me find the wallet. Thankfully, he called back soon after and told me my wallet was still there.

I was grateful that Anna had reminded me right away and advised me to call the restaurant. Otherwise, my wallet might have been taken away by another diner. I learned an important lesson from this experience: don't panic when you lose something; instead, calm yourself down and think about where it was the last time you saw it!

#### 中文思路:

我还记得大概是几个月前,我和我的同学 Anna 在逛商场时不小心丢失了我的钱包,幸运的是,后来我找回了它。如果我没记错的话,那是一个周末,那时候我们刚考完期末考,心情特别好,于是我们就兴高采烈地去商场吃午饭,然后就在商场逛街。淘宝店铺:安小雅。

当我吃完饭后不久,我发现我的钱包不见了。一开始我还以为是被偷了,心情非常沮丧。钱包里面有我所有的证件和银行卡,虽然不值钱,但是补办起来是非常麻烦的。不过这时候 Anna 让我仔细想想最后一次用钱包是什么时候。我想了一会就想起来了,我最后一次用到我的钱包是在中午吃饭的餐馆。于是我赶紧拿起手机就给饭馆打电话。饭馆的经理接通了电话,并答应帮我找找。所幸,他很快就给我回电话,告诉我钱包找到了。

所幸 Anna 提醒了我,并让赶紧打电话给饭馆询问。如果没有这通电话,时间久了,我的钱包就很可能被下一个客人拿走了。这件事情对我来说是一个教训:以后万一丢了东西不要慌,要赶紧静下心来想想最后一次用是什么时候!

# (十八) 共享单车

# 42-43: 改变世界的发明 & 节省时间的改变

Describe an invention which you think has changed the world in a good way.

Some instructions that you can follow:

What this invention is

What it does

How popular it is with people of different ages

And explain how you think this invention has

changed the world in a good way.

Describe a change you made in your daily life that saved you a lot of time.

Some instructions that you can follow:

What the change was

When you made this change

How easy it was to make this change

And explain how making this change in your daily

life saved you a lot of time.

#### 《改变世界的发明》

Recently, I have started riding shared bikes, which I find very convenient. Many young people joke that shared bikes are one of the four great inventions of the contemporary era.

Compared with traditional bikes, shared bikes are an innovative method of travel and are becoming increasingly popular in recent years. If the need to ride a bike arises, I no longer need to buy one of my own. Instead, I just need to take out my mobile phone, scan the code on the bike parked on the roadside, and ride it to wherever I want to go. I've been riding shared bikes for several months and I have to say it saves me a lot of time. It used to take me twenty minutes to walk from the dorm to the classroom, but now, with the great help of share bikes, it only takes me five minutes.

The advent of shared bikes has greatly cut down on my time spent commuting. Nowadays, people's pace of life is getting faster and faster, and most of them are unwilling to waste their precious time on commuting, so shared bikes are catching on among young and middle-aged people in a big way. Many office workers also ride shared bikes, which allows them to quickly get to work from subway stations. In the CBD area of many cities, you can hardly find a free shared bike during peak hours, so you can see how popular it is.

最近一段时间以来,我开始使用共享单车。我发现这实在是太方便了。如今很多年轻人都会开玩笑说,它是当代四大发明之一。

共享单<mark>车是近几年流行起来</mark>的一种全新的出行方式,它在传统自行车的基础上进行了创新。我不再需要购买一辆属于自己的自行车。当我需要的时候,只需要拿出手机扫码,就可以骑走停在路边的自行车去任何我想去的地方。我使用共享单车已经有好几个月了,不得不说这非常节省时间。以前我从宿舍走去教室需要 20 分钟,现在我使用共享单车,只需要五分钟就够了。

共享单车的出现大大节约了我的通勤时间。如今人们的生活节奏越来越快,没有人愿意把宝贵的时间浪费在路上。因此共享单车不论是在年轻人还是中年人中都很受欢迎。很多上班族都会使用共享单车,这可以让他们快速的从地铁站到达公司。在许多城市的 CBD 区域,上下班时间你甚至很难找到一辆空闲的车,这足以说明它有多抢手。

#### 《近期做出的改变》

Recently, I have started riding shared bikes, which I find very convenient. Many young people joke that shared bikes are one of the four great inventions of the contemporary era.

Compared with traditional bikes, shared bikes are an innovative method of travel and are becoming increasingly popular in recent years. If the need to ride a bike arises, I no longer need to buy one of my own. Instead, I just need to take out my mobile phone, scan the code on the bike parked on the roadside, and ride it to wherever I want to go. I've been riding shared bikes for several months and I have to say it saves me a lot of time. It used to take me twenty minutes to walk from the dorm to the classroom, but now, with the great help of share bikes, it only takes me five minutes.

Making changes is not difficult. At first, when my roommate Anna introduced the shared bikes to me, I felt that it was a hassle to register on the app and was reluctant to try it. Until one time when I went out with Anna, I reluctantly rode a shared bike for the first time, and I was surprised by its convenience!

The advent of shared bikes has greatly cut down on my time spent commuting. Nowadays, people's pace of life is getting faster and faster, and most of them are unwilling to waste their precious time on commuting. I used to take the bus or walk whenever I went out. However, I usually needed to wait for the bus to arrive and it also took me some time to walk from the station to the destination, which takes even longer. Since I started using shared bikes, I can get to almost anywhere I want to go within 20 minutes.

#### 中文思路:

最近一段时间以来,我开始使用共享单车。我发现这实在是太方便了。如今很多年轻人都会开玩笑说, 它是当代四大发明之一。

共享单车是近几年流行起来的一种全新的出行方式,它在传统自行车的基础上进行了创新。我不再需要购买一辆属于自己的自行车。当我需要的时候,只需要拿出手机扫码,就可以骑走停在路边的自行车去任何我想去的地方。我使用共享单车已经有好几个月了,不得不说这非常节省时间。以前我从宿舍走去教室需要 20 分钟,现在我使用共享单车,只需要五分钟就够了。

事实上做出改变并不困难。共享单车是我的舍友 anna 介绍给我的,一开始我觉得注册很麻烦,并不愿意尝试。直到有一次我们一起出门,我才被迫使用了共享单车。令我没想到的是它实在是太方便了!

共享单车的出现大大节约了我的通勤时间。如今人们的生活节奏越来越快,没有人愿意把宝贵的时间浪费在路上。<u>以前我出门都是选择公交或者步行。公交往往需要等车,车站距离目的地也有一段距离,这些都非常费时。步行花的时间就更长了。在我开始使用共享单车以后,20 分钟内我几乎可以到达任何</u>我想去的地方。

# (单独话题)

# 44: 国内重要水域

Describe an important river, lake or area of water in your country.

Some instructions that you can follow:

Where in your country it is

How big it is

What it looks like

And explain why this river, lake or area of water is important for your country.

The Pearl River is an extensive river system in southern China. Having lived in Guangzhou for eighteen years, I am still surprised at the ongoing developments happening in Guangzhou, and the Pearl River in particular. Today, the two riverbanks of the Pearl River make for the most beautiful landscape of Guangzhou.

If my memory serves me correctly, the Pearl River is the third largest river in our country. It flows through Guangdong, Guangxi, Guizhou and other provinces. To be honest, I don't know exactly how long or how big it is, but I do know that it is very wide because the bridges across the river in Guangzhou are quite long. I assume that the Pearl River may be nearly a kilometer wide.

The Pearl River plays an important role in the development of southern cities. Since ancient times, people on both sides of the Pearl River have used the water to irrigate grain and transport goods. In modern times, the Pearl River has gradually become a valuable tourist attraction for southern cities. A large number of high-rise buildings have been built on both sides of the Pearl River. Every night, there are beautiful light shows along the riverbank and its skyscrapers. The cruise ships on the river and the lights on the shore contribute to a beautiful scene, attracting both tourists and locals alike to watch and enjoy.

#### 中文思路:

珠江是中国南部一个非常大的水域。在广州生活了将近 20 年,我仍然对广州的发展感到惊讶,特别是珠江。如今,珠江两岸是广州最美丽的风景线。

如果我没记错的话,珠江是我国的第三大河流。它流经广东,广西,贵州等省份。说实话,我并不知道它具体有多长,亦或者有多大。但我知道珠江很宽,因为广州的跨江大桥非常长。我估计珠江可能有将近一千米宽

珠江对南方城市的发展起着重要的作用。自古以来,珠江两岸的人们用珠江水来灌溉粮食,运输货物。到了现代,珠江逐渐成为了南方城市宝贵的旅游资源。珠江两岸建起了大量的高楼大厦。每天晚上,沿着河岸和那些高层建筑都会呈现出美丽的灯光秀。江上的游轮和两岸的灯光组成了一副极美的画面,吸引众多游客和本地人驻足观看。

# 45: 拍过的一张满意的照片(新题)

Describe a photo you took that you are proud of.

Some instructions you can follow:

Who or what was in your photo

When you took the photo

Why you took it

And explain why you are proud of this photo you took.

The wallpaper of my cell phone is special to me and I like very much. It is a photograph that I took myself of one of the most beautiful sunsets I had ever seen in my life. Copyright by AnXiaoYa.

I enjoy snapping photos. I take photographs of all sorts of things but am particularly interested in nature. During the Spring Festival this year, my whole family took a family vacation to the seaside city of Sanya, I was very excited to take pictures of all the beautiful things there. On the last day, we went down to the beach and watched the sunset. It was the most glorious sunset I had ever seen in my life. The sky changed from pink to deep red and then a light purple. After about an hour, the sun faded from the horizon. It was my first time watching the sunset at the seaside. I took a magnificent photograph of it.

When I returned home, I set this photo as the wallpaper on my cell phone. Every day I see it, it reminds me of being in Sanya and how happy I was there. My friends even asked me where I downloaded the picture, and I proudly told them that I had taken it myself. I am very proud that my works can be recognized by others because it means I am a talented photographer!

#### 中文思路:

我的手机壁纸是一张对我来说很特别的照片,我非常喜欢。这是我自己拍摄的一张照片,它是我一生中 见过的最美的日落之一。

我是个非常喜欢拍照的人。我拍了各种各样的东西,但我对大自然特别感兴趣。今年春节我们全家去海滨城市三亚度假,我很兴奋地拍下了那里所有美丽的东西。最后一天,我们去海滩看日落。这是我一生中见过的最壮观的日落。天空从粉色变成深红色,再一点点变成紫色。大概一个小时后,太阳才从海平面上渐渐消失。这是我第一次在海边看日落,我忍不住用相机记录下了这一切。

当我们回到家的时候,我把我最喜欢的一张照片设置成我的手机桌面。每当我看到它就想起三亚,我在那里是多么快乐。我的朋友甚至问我从在哪里下载的图片,我很自豪的告诉她这是我自己拍的。对于一个喜爱摄影的人来说,作品能得到他人的肯定,是非常值得骄傲的。这代表我的摄影技术确实不错!

# 46: 忘记约定的时刻(新题)

Describe a time when you forgot an appointment (e.g. a doctor's appointment or meeting a friend).

Some instructions you can follow:

When and where the appointment was

Why you forgot the appointment

What happened after you forgot the appointment

And explain how you felt about forgetting the appointment.

Recently, I missed an appointment due to my own negligence (疏忽). Lucy is one of my best friends and we have known each other for almost ten years and we are on very good terms. We haven't seen each other for several months because we've been busy recently. We made an appointment to have a lunch at a restaurant downtown last month.

The night before, I went to sleep in peace. Maybe I was too tired, I forgot to set an alarm and sleet like a dog (睡得很沉). Unfortunately, when I woke up, it was past twelve o 'clock the next day! In a daze (在恍惚中), I picked up my mobile phone and saw that Lucy had made many missed calls to me. At that time, I suddenly realized that I had missed the appointment because I slept late. How stupid I am!

I quickly made a call to Lucy to say sorry. She told me that she had arrived at the restaurant and had been waiting for me for a long time. I sincerely apologized to her, but she was clearly still angry. I felt very upset that I missed the appointment because of my mistake, which made my friend very unhappy. This experience made me understand that if there is an important date, you need to prepare carefully in advance, and you should not bother others because of your carelessness. It's very rude to break an appointment.

### 中文思路:

最近,我因为自己的疏忽错过了一次约会。Lucy 是我最好的朋友之一,我们已经认识十年了,关系非常要好。因为最近比较忙,我们已经有好几个月没有见面,上个月的某个周末,我们约好了在市中心的商场一起吃午饭。

前一天晚上我安心的睡觉了。可能因为太累,那天我忘了设置闹钟,而且睡的非常好。当我醒来的时候,已经是第二天中午十二点多了。我迷迷糊糊的拿起手机,看到 lucy 给我打了很多个未接电话。那时候我突然意识到,我因为睡懒觉错过了这次的约会。我觉得自己愚蠢极了。

我赶紧打电话给 lucy 解释,她已经到了餐厅并且等了我很久。我真诚的向她道歉,但显然她还是很生气。我感到非常懊恼,因为自己的失误错过了约会,让朋友很不愉快。这次经历让我明白了如果有重要的约会,需要提前细心准备,不能因为自己的粗心给别人带来困扰。临时失约是很不礼貌的。

# 47: 分享某物的时刻(新题)

Describe a time when you had to share something with another person or other people Some instructions you can follow:

What you had to share

Who you had to share with

Why you had to share

And explain how you felt about sharing something with another person other people.

My best friend Anna and I went shopping last weekend, not only because we wanted to buy something, but Lady M, a bakery sweeping New York, opened its first store in the Mixc Shopping Center. We both wanted to have a taste.

It was the weekend and the queue was long. Since we came late, only one piece of crepe cake was left when it was our turn. Though the salesclerk advised us to try other kinds, we believed the crepe cake was the most popular and decided to share one that was left.

I felt somewhat lost at first as I had intended to take some home. But Anna comforted me that it was lucky to get the last cake and if we had been a bit later, we would have gotten nothing. Her words made me feel better. We shared the cake while chatting happily. We took turns to enjoy the cake, which seemed especially delicious, though we didn't why.

Sharing food with friends is a happy time. In the process, we not only enjoyed delicious food, but also strengthened our relationship

## 中文思路:

上周末我约了最好的朋友 Anna 一起去逛街。不仅<mark>因为我</mark>们想要买东西,还因为风靡纽约的蛋糕店 Lady M,在万象城购物中心开了全市首家门店,我和 Anna 都非常想试试。

那天是周末,排队的人很多。我们去的有<mark>些晚</mark>,轮到我们的时候,千层蛋糕只剩下最后一块了。店员建议我们尝试下其他种类的蛋糕,但是千层蛋糕才是他们家最流行的款式。思考过后我们决定两个人分享一块蛋糕。

一开始我有些失落,我原本想多买一些带回家的。Anna 安慰我说幸好我们买到了最后一块,再晚一点点就什么也买不到了。听了她的话我感觉心情好了很多。我们一边聊天,一起分享着一块小小的蛋糕。你一口我一口。也不知是因为什么,嘴里的蛋糕变得格外美味。

与好朋友一起分享食物是一件开心的事。在这个过程中,不仅品尝到了美食,我们的关系也变得更亲密了。

# 48: 美丽的物品(新题)

Describe an object that you think is very beautiful.

Some instructions you can follow:

What the object is

Where you first saw the object

What it looks like

And explain how you feel about this beautiful object.

Copyright by AnXiaoYa. On my 18th birthday, my grandma gave me a necklace. It was a very beautiful necklace. In my opinion, it is not only a piece of jewelry, but also a beautiful piece of art.

This necklace is in the classic style of a famous brand, and the overall shape of it looks like a key. It is made of white gold, and the top is set with a circle of tiny diamonds. As long as it is in the light, the necklace will glitters brilliantly. Not only that, but it also goes very well with everything. It doesn't matter what I'm wearing, a t-shirt or a dress, this necklace will fit perfectly.

In fact, the first time I saw this necklace was in a boutique at the mall. It was sparkling in the window and looked very attractive. Because it was so expensive, I never thought I would receive this necklace as a birthday gift. When I first got it, I didn't even want to throw away the packaging because it was just too beautiful.

This necklace has always been my treasure, and I would only wear it on some important occasions. On my birthday, my grandma told me the reason why she gave me this necklace. It was because she wanted it to be a key to open the door to success. She also hoped that my studies would go smoothly afterwards. Therefore, for me it is not only a beautiful piece of jewelry, but also carries my grandma's good wishes for me.

### 中文思路:

在我十八岁生日的时候,我的奶奶送了我一条项链。这条项链非常漂亮。在我看来,它不仅是一件首饰, 更是一件精美的艺术品。

这条项链是某著名品牌的经典款式,整体的造型是一把钥匙的形状。淘宝店铺:安小雅。它是白金材质的,顶端镶嵌了一圈细小的钻石。只要在灯光下,项链就会非常闪耀。不仅如此,它还非常好搭配。不管我穿着什么衣服,T恤或者连衣裙,这条项链都可以完美契合。

事实上,我一次见到这条项链是在商场的精品店里。它在橱窗里闪闪发光,看起来非常吸引人。由于它的价格太过昂贵,我从来没想过会收到这条项链作为生日礼物。在我刚刚拿到它的时候,我甚至不舍得丢掉包装。因为它们实在是太精美了。

这条项链一直<mark>是我</mark>的宝贝,只有在一些重要场合我才会带上它。生日那天奶奶告诉我,之所以会送给我这条项链。是因为她希望这是一把开启成功之门的钥匙。也希望我之后的学业能够顺顺利利。因此,对于我而言它不仅是一件美丽的首饰,同时承载着奶奶对我美好的祝愿。

# 49: 受欢迎的运动场(新题)

Describe a popular place for playing sport (e.g. a stadium, a sports centre) that you know about.

Some instructions you can follow:

Where this place for playing sport is

How you know about this place

Whether you have visited this place

And explain why you think this place for playing sport is popular.

Tianhe Sports Center is the largest and most popular stadium with all people in Guangzhou city. I believe all locals know it. Located downtown, it is one of the landmark buildings in Guangzhou. It is surrounded by brand-new office buildings and the busiest & most luxurious shopping malls. If my memory serves me right, it is composed of a large-scale football field and many small sports fields.

When I was very young, my father took me to Tianhe Sports Center and we played bowling. That was the first time I ever bowled, so I was very impressed with the place. There are numerous facilities and venues in Tianhe Sports Center where citizens can play basketball, badminton and swim. There are also many fitness facilities and equipment in the surrounding area. I can see the elderly and children playing with the equipment every time I pass by. When the weather is nice, people also fly kites in the square.

I think the following is why it has become so popular. Firstly, it is located in the most prosperous district of downtown where the traffic is convenient with many bus and subway lines available. Secondly, it occupies an extensive area and provides multiple facilities that are suitable for people of different ages to exercise.

#### 中文思路:

天河体育中心是我们当地最大的,也是最<mark>受欢迎</mark>的全民体育场,我相信每一个当地人都知道它。它坐落在市中心,是广州的地标建筑之一。它周围都是崭新的写字楼,还有广州最繁华最豪华的商场。如果我没记错的话,它是由一个大型的足球场和众多的小体育场馆组成的。

在我很小的时候,我爸爸就带我来天河体育中心打保龄球。这是我第一次打保龄球,所以我对这个地方印象非常深刻。在天河体育中心里有众多设施和场馆,市民们可以在这里打篮球,打羽毛球,游泳。周边还有非常多的健身器材和设备,我每次路过那里都能看见老人小孩在里面玩耍。在天气好的时候,人们还会在它的广场上放风筝。

我认为这就是它为什么如此受欢迎的原因。一是它坐落在市中心最繁华的地段,交通方便,很多公交和地铁线路覆盖。二是它占地广,设施多,适合各年龄层人群来运动。

# 50: 朋友的家 (新题)

Describe the home of somebody who you know well.

Some instructions you can follow:

Whose home this is

How often you go there

What this home looks like

And explain how you feel about this person's home.

I'd like to talk about the family of my good friend, Anna. She was my high school classmate. We had a very good relationship, so I would often go to her home to hang out with her. Anna's home was very big and had 4 rooms. I visited her home nearly once a month, so I became well acquainted with her family members.

Anna has a big family. Her grandparents lived together with her and her parents. They also raised two dogs! At the weekends, Anna's uncle and aunt would come home for dinner with their children. Therefore, the atmosphere of her house was very lively. Her grandparents were very hospitable and prepared lots of delicious food for me each time we met. Anna's mum was very gentle. I was always happy while staying at her home.

My family has only 3 members, my father, my mother and me, which makes me feel a bit desolate sometimes. Even when the Chines New Year came, my home was not as lively as that of Anna's. I like small animals, and have wished to keep a dog since I was very little. However, my mother dislikes animals and will not allow me a pet. Actually, I adore Anna's family. That's what my ideal family would look like.

中文思路:

我想谈谈我的好朋友 anna 的家。她是我的高中同学,我们两个关系非常要好,因此空闲的时候我经常会去她的家里玩耍。Anna 的家很大,足足有四个房间。我大概每个月都会至少去她家一次,因此我和她的家人都非常熟悉。

Anna 的家是一个大家庭,除了她们一家三口,她的爷爷奶奶也住在她家。他们还养了两条狗!周末的时候,anna 的叔叔婶婶会带着孩子一起回来吃饭。因此,她们家非常热闹。她的爷爷奶奶是非常热情的人,每次见到我都会给我做很多好吃的菜。Anna 的妈妈也很温柔,呆在他们家我的心情总是很好。

我们家只有我和爸爸妈妈三个人,很多时候我会觉得有点冷清。即便是过年,我们家也没有 anna 家那么热闹。我是个喜欢小动物的人,从很小的时候我就想养一条狗。但我的妈妈讨厌动物,她不允许我养宠物。事实上,我很喜欢 anna 的家。那是我理想中家庭该有的样子。